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EXPLANATORY NOTE

Unless stated otherwise, the information contained in these consolidated financial statements gives retroactive effect to a one-for-ten reverse stock split of
the Company’s common shares effected on July 28, 2016. See Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements for further information.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This quarterly report (this "Quarterly Report") contains “forward-looking” statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act

of 1995, as well as historical information. When used in this Quarterly Report, statements that are not statements of current or historical fact may be deemed
to be forward-looking statements. Without limiting the foregoing, the words “plan,” “intend,” “may,” “will,” “expect,” “believe,” “could,” “anticipate,”
“estimate,” “continue” or similar expressions or other variations or comparable terminology are intended to identify such forward-looking statements,
although some forward-looking statements are expressed differently. We remind readers that forward-looking statements are merely predictions and therefore
inherently subject to uncertainties and other factors and involve known and unknown risks that could cause the actual results, performance, levels of activity
or our achievements or industry results, to be materially different from any future results, performance, levels of activity or our achievements or industry
results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from anticipated results
expressed or implied by forward-looking statements include, among others:

• our ability to obtain sufficient capital or strategic business arrangements to fund our operations and expansion plans, including meeting our financial
obligations under various licensing and other strategic arrangements, the funding of our clinical trials for product candidates, and the
commercialization of the relevant technology;

• our ability to build and maintain the management and human resources infrastructure necessary to support the growth of our business;
• our ability to integrate our acquired businesses successfully and grow such acquired businesses as anticipated, including expanding our PCT

business;
• whether a market is established for our cell-based products and services and our ability to capture a meaningful share of this market;
• scientific and medical developments beyond our control;
• our ability to obtain and maintain, as applicable, appropriate governmental licenses, accreditations or certifications or comply with healthcare laws

and regulations or any other adverse effect or limitations caused by government regulation of our business;
• whether any of our current or future patent applications result in issued patents, the scope of those patents and our ability to obtain and maintain

other rights to technology required or desirable for the conduct of our business; and our ability to commercialize products without infringing the
claims of third party patents;

• whether any potential strategic or financial benefits of various licensing agreements will be realized;
• the results of our development activities;
• our ability to complete our other planned clinical trials (or initiate other trials) in accordance with our estimated timelines due to delays associated

with enrolling patients due to the novelty of the treatment, the size of the patient population and the need of patients to meet the inclusion criteria of
the trial or otherwise;

• our ability to satisfy our obligations under our loan agreement; and
• other factors discussed in "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on

March 15, 2016 (our "2015 Form 10-K").

The factors discussed herein, including those risks described in "Item 1A. Risk Factors" and elsewhere in our 2015 Form 10-K and in our other periodic
filings with the SEC, which are available for review at www.sec.gov, could cause actual results and developments to be materially different from those
expressed or implied by such statements. All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by these and other factors.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date they were made. Except as required
by law, we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM I. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements

CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

 June 30, 
2016  December 31, 

2015

ASSETS (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)

Current Assets    

Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,699,686  $ 20,318,411

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $0 at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 2,892,467  2,566,101

Deferred costs 5,149,777  2,911,743

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,512,007  3,476,177

Total current assets 29,253,937  29,272,432

Property, plant and equipment, net 17,039,880  17,064,900

Goodwill 7,013,315  7,013,315

Intangible assets, net 2,592,880  2,877,880

Other assets 812,888  976,768

Total assets $ 56,712,900  $ 57,205,295

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    

Current Liabilities    

Accounts payable $ 2,903,221  $ 4,107,388

Accrued liabilities 6,202,343  6,198,488

Long-term debt, current 5,007,851  4,171,456

Notes payable, current 1,012,393  1,192,666

Unearned revenues 7,231,005  5,345,225

Total current liabilities 22,356,813  21,015,223

Long-term Liabilities    

Deferred income taxes 1,032,994  932,662

Notes payable 321,375  583,041

Unearned revenues - long-term 3,812,998  —

Long-term debt 3,643,502  10,828,544

Other long-term liabilities 508,590  562,001

Total liabilities $ 31,676,272  $ 33,921,471

Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 15)  

Redeemable Securities 19,400,000  —

EQUITY    

Stockholders' Equity*    
Preferred stock, authorized, 20,000,000 shares

Series B convertible redeemable preferred stock liquidation value, 1 share of common stock, $.01 par value; 825,000 shares designated;
issued and outstanding, 10,000 shares at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 100  100

Common stock, $.001 par value, authorized 500,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding, 5,926,749 and 5,673,302 shares, at June 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, respectively 5,927  5,673

Additional paid-in capital 398,699,991  396,547,401

Treasury stock, at cost; 10,999 shares at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively (707,637)  (707,637)

Accumulated deficit (391,948,123)  (372,132,490)

Accumulated other comprehensive income —  486

Total Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. stockholders' equity 6,050,258  23,713,533

Noncontrolling interests (413,630)  (429,709)

Total equity 5,636,628  23,283,824

Total liabilities and equity $ 56,712,900  $ 57,205,295

*Adjusted to reflect the impact of the 1:10 reverse stock split that became effective on July 28, 2016    
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

 (Unaudited)

 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015  2016  2015

Revenues $ 8,300,439  $ 5,866,963  $ 15,789,918  $ 9,039,242

        

Costs and expenses:        
Cost of revenues 7,051,546  5,798,796  13,279,802  9,167,408

Research and development 4,027,965  7,600,744  9,904,143  14,404,376

Impairment of intangible assets —  9,400,000  —  9,400,000

Selling, general, and administrative 4,705,879  8,736,373  11,164,210  19,824,272

Total operating costs and expenses 15,785,390  31,535,913  34,348,155  52,796,056

        

Operating loss (7,484,951)  (25,668,950)  (18,558,237)  (43,756,814)

        

Other income (expense):        
Other income (expense), net 6,860  5,354,845  12,545  4,808,818

Interest expense (359,725)  (547,275)  (1,286,542)  (1,098,239)

 (352,865)  4,807,570  (1,273,997)  3,710,579

        

Loss before provision for income taxes and noncontrolling interests (7,837,816)  (20,861,380)  (19,832,234)  (40,046,235)

Provision (benefit) for income taxes 46,954  (3,703,363)  100,332  (3,656,730)

Net loss (7,884,770)  (17,158,017)  (19,932,566)  (36,389,505)

        

Less - loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (50,054)  (31,757)  (116,933)  (76,349)

Net loss attributable to Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. common stockholders $ (7,834,716)  $ (17,126,260)  $ (19,815,633)  $ (36,313,156)

        
Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. common
stockholders $ (1.33)  $ (3.84)  $ (3.39)  $ (8.83)

Weighted average common shares outstanding* 5,907,013  4,457,480  5,839,963  4,110,413

        
*Adjusted to reflect the impact of the 1:10 reverse stock split that became effective on July 28, 2016

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(Unaudited) 

 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015  2016  2015

Net loss $ (7,884,770)  $ (17,158,017)  $ (19,932,566)  $ (36,389,505)

        

Other comprehensive loss:        
Available for sale securities - net unrealized (loss) gain —  1,866  (486)  537

Total other comprehensive loss —  1,866  (486)  537

        

Comprehensive loss (7,884,770)  (17,156,151)  (19,933,052)  (36,388,968)

        

Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (50,054)  (31,757)  (116,933)  (76,349)

        

Comprehensive loss attributable to Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. common stockholders $ (7,834,716)  $ (17,124,394)  $ (19,816,119)  $ (36,312,619)

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(Unaudited) 

 
Series B Convertible

Preferred Stock  Common Stock*  
Additional

Paid in
Capital*

 Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

 

Accumulated
Deficit

 

Treasury
Stock

 
Total

Caladrius
Biosciences,

Inc.
Stockholders'

Equity

 Non-
Controlling
Interest in
Subsidiary

 

Total
Equity Shares  Amount  Shares  Amount        

Balance at December 31,
2014 10,000  $ 100  3,678,386  $ 3,678  $ 350,462,009  $ 1,329  $(291,246,538)  $ (705,742)  $58,514,836  $ (441,047)  $58,073,789

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  —  (36,313,156)  —  (36,313,156)  (76,349)  (36,389,505)
Unrealized gain/loss on
marketable securities —  —  —  —  —  537  —  —  537  —  537
Equity-based compensation
expense —  —  90,334  90  8,132,016  —  —  —  8,132,106  —  8,132,106
Proceeds from issuance of
common stock —  —  1,776,582  1,777  36,134,637  —  —  —  36,136,414  —  36,136,414
Change in Ownership in
Subsidiary —  —  —  —  (88,928)  —  —  —  (88,928)  88,928  —

Balance at June 30, 2015 10,000  $ 100  5,545,302  $ 5,545  $ 394,639,734  $ 1,866  $(327,559,694)  $ (705,742)  $66,381,809  $ (428,468)  $65,953,341

                      

                      

 
Series B Convertible

Preferred Stock  Common Stock*  
Additional

Paid in
Capital*

 Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

 

Accumulated
Deficit

 

Treasury
Stock

 
Total

Caladrius
Biosciences,

Inc.
Stockholders'

Equity

 Non-
Controlling
Interest in
Subsidiary

 

Total
Equity Shares  Amount  Shares  Amount        

Balance at December 31,
2015 10,000  $ 100  5,673,302  $ 5,673  $ 396,547,401  $ 486  $(372,132,490)  $ (707,637)  $23,713,533  $ (429,709)  $23,283,824

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  —  (19,815,633)  —  (19,815,633)  (116,933)  (19,932,566)
Unrealized gain/loss on
marketable securities —  —  —  —  —  (486)  —  —  (486)  —  (486)
Equity-based compensation
expense —  —  95,355  95  1,235,049  —  —   1,235,144  —  1,235,144
Proceeds from issuance of
common stock —  —  158,092  159  1,050,553  —  —  —  1,050,712  —  1,050,712
Change in Ownership in
Subsidiary —  —  —  — (133,012)  —  —  —  (133,012)  133,012  —

Balance at June 30, 2016 10,000  $ 100  5,926,749  $ 5,927  $ 398,699,991  $ —  $(391,948,123)  $ (707,637)  $ 6,050,258  $ (413,630)  $ 5,636,628

                      
*Adjusted to reflect the impact of the 1:10 reverse stock split that became effective on July 28, 2016

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
 

 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015

Cash flows from operating activities:    

Net loss $ (19,932,566)  $ (36,389,505)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:    

Equity-based compensation expense 1,235,143  8,132,106

Depreciation and amortization 1,422,011  1,254,305

Change in acquisition-related contingent consideration —  (4,800,000)

Impairment of intangible assets —  9,400,000

Loss on disposal of assets 591,307  —

Bad debt recovery —  (2,641)

Deferred income taxes 100,332  (3,656,730)

Accretion on marketable securities —  33,054

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

Prepaid expenses and other current assets (35,830)  368,620

Accounts receivable (326,366)  1,816,376

Deferred costs (2,238,034)  (406,498)

Unearned revenues 5,698,778  308,912

Other assets 163,393  (8,005)

Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other liabilities (1,253,723)  2,122,987

Net cash used in operating activities (14,575,555)  (21,827,019)

Cash flows from investing activities:    

Purchase of marketable securities —  (3,013,157)

Sale of marketable securities —  7,049,000

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (1,703,297)  (1,802,607)

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (1,703,297)  2,233,236

Cash flows from financing activities:    

Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 1,050,712  36,136,414

Repayment of long-term debt (6,348,646)  —

Proceeds from notes payable 368,615  1,089,611

Repayment of notes payable (810,554)  (594,979)

Sale of ownership interest in subsidiary 19,400,000  —

Net cash provided by financing activities 13,660,127  36,631,046

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,618,725)  17,037,263

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 20,318,411  19,174,061

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 17,699,686  $ 36,211,324

    

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:    

Cash paid during the period for:    

Interest $ 1,200,364  $ 744,811

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 – The Business
 
Overview
 

Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. (“we,” “us,” "our," “Caladrius” or the “Company”), through its subsidiary, PCT, LLC, a Caladrius CompanyTM ("PCT"),
is a leading provider of development and manufacturing services to the cell and cell-based gene therapy industry. PCT has significant cell therapy-specific
experience and expertise, an expansive list of noteworthy clients and significant revenue growth over the past two years. Notably, PCT and Hitachi Chemical
Co. America, Ltd. and Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. (each independently or collectively referred to herein as "Hitachi Chemical") entered into a strategic
collaboration to accelerate the creation of a global commercial cell therapy development and manufacturing enterprise with deep engineering expertise.
Caladrius leverages both its internal specialized cell therapy clinical development expertise and PCT’s prowess to select and develop early-stage cell therapy
candidates with the intention of partnering these candidates post proof-of-concept in man to both generate value for our shareholders and to expand PCT’s
client base. Our current lead product candidate, CLBS03, is a T regulatory cell (“Treg”) clinical Phase 2 therapy targeting adolescents with recent-onset type
1 diabetes.

Cell Therapy Development and Manufacturing

PCT is a leading cell therapy development and manufacturing provider (often called a contract development and manufacturing organization, or
"CDMO"), specializing in cell and cell-based gene therapies. PCT offers high-quality development and manufacturing capabilities (e.g., current Good
Manufacturing Practice (“cGMP”) manufacturing systems and facilities), quality systems, cell and tissue processing, logistics, storage and distribution and
engineering solutions (e.g., process and assay development, optimization and automation) to clients with therapeutic candidates at all stages of development.
PCT produces clinical supplies and ultimately, intends also to produce commercial product for its clients. PCT has worked with over 100 clients and produced
over 20,000 cell therapy products since it was founded 17 years ago. PCT’s manufacturing services are designed to reduce the capital investment and time
required by clients to advance their development programs compared to conducting the process development and manufacturing in-house. PCT has
demonstrated regulatory expertise, including the support of over 50 U.S. and European Union ("EU") regulatory filings for clients and expertise across
multiple cell types and therapeutic applications, including immunotherapy (e.g. CAR-T therapies), neuro/endocrine therapies, hematopoietic replacement and
tissue repair/regeneration. PCT offers a complete development pathway for its clients, with services supporting preclinical through commercial phase, all
underpinned by timely process optimization and automation support. We currently operate facilities qualified under cGMPs in each of Allendale, New Jersey
and Mountain View, California, including EU-grade production suites. On March 11, 2016, PCT entered into a strategic collaboration and license agreement
with Hitachi Chemical to accelerate the creation of a global commercial cell therapy development and manufacturing enterprise with deep engineering
expertise. PCT is positioned to expand its capacity both in the United States and internationally, as needed. As the industry continues to mature and a growing
number of cell therapy companies approach commercialization, we believe that PCT is well positioned to serve as an external manufacturing partner of choice
for commercial-stage cell therapy companies.

CLBS03

We are developing, through the utilization of our core development and manufacturing expertise, a product candidate that is an innovative therapy
for type 1 diabetes mellitus ("TID"). This therapy is based on a proprietary platform technology for immunomodulation. We have selected as an initial target
the unmet medical need of pediatric patients who are newly diagnosed with T1D. This program is based on the use of Tregs to treat diseases caused by
imbalances in an individual's immune system. This novel approach seeks to restore immune balance by enhancing Treg number and function. Tregs are a
natural part of the human immune system and regulate the activity of T effector cells; the cells that are responsible for protecting the body from viruses and
other foreign antigens. When Tregs function properly, only harmful foreign materials are attacked by T effector cells. In autoimmune disease, however, it is
thought that deficient Treg activity and numbers permit the T effector cells to attack the body's own beneficial cells. In the case of T1D, there are currently no
curative treatments, only lifelong insulin therapy, which often does not prevent serious co-morbidities. Two Phase 1 clinical trials of this technology in T1D
patients demonstrated safety and tolerance, feasibility of manufacturing, an implied durability of effect and an early indication of efficacy through the
preservation of beta cell function. In the first quarter of 2016 we commenced patient enrollment in the first of two cohorts in The Sanford Project: T-Rex
Study, a Phase 2 prospective, randomized, placebo-controlled, double-blind clinical trial to evaluate the safety and efficacy of our Treg product candidate,
CLBS03, in adolescents with recent onset T1D. After the three-month follow-up of the first cohort of 18 patients, which is expected by year end 2016, an
initial safety analysis of the data and early analysis of immunological biomarkers will be undertaken. Satisfactory evaluation of the safety of the initial cohort
as agreed by us, our independent Data Safety Monitoring Board and the U.S. Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") will then prompt the enrollment
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of the remaining 93 patients. A subsequent interim analysis of efficacy is planned after approximately 50% of patients reach the six-month follow-up
milestone. We entered into a strategic collaboration with Sanford Research to support the execution of this trial. Sanford Research is a U.S.-based non-profit
research organization that supports an emerging translational research center focused on finding a cure for T1D. CLBS03 has been granted Fast Track and
Orphan Drug designations from the FDA as well as Advanced Therapeutic Medicinal Product classification from the European Medicines Agency.

Additional Technology Platforms
    
Our broad intellectual property portfolio of cell therapy assets includes notable programs available for out-licensing and partnering in order to

continue our clinical development. These include platforms using tumor cell/dendritic cell technology for immuno-oncology and CD34 technology for
ischemic repair. Both have the benefit of promising Phase 2 clinical data and are applicable to multiple indications. The immuno-oncology platform is based
on our extensive intellectual property portfolio and includes CLBS20, a candidate for metastatic melanoma which was investigated in two Phase 2 trials and
recently in a discontinued Phase 3 clinical trial. With respect to our ischemic repair platform, the Company's Clinical Trial Notification for a pivotal Phase 2
trial investigating CLBS12 (a candidate for critical limb ischemia "CLI") was submitted to the Japanese Pharmaceuticals and Medical Devices Agency
("PMDA") and was cleared to proceed. The protocol design was agreed with PMDA and if successful, could provide the basis for a conditional approval
under Japan's favorable regenerative medicine law. We are seeking to collaborate on CLBS12 with development and/or manufacturing partners. In January
2016, we out-licensed our CD34 technology to SPS Cardio, LLC for chronic heart failure and acute myocardial infarction (candidate CLBS10) in India and
other designated territories and non-major world markets outside the United States. In February 2016, we out-licensed a cell-derived dermatological product
technology for topical skin application to AiVita Biomedical, Inc. ("AiVita"), which it intends to distribute through ALPHAEON Corporation. Furthermore,
in May 2016, we out-licensed our tumor cell/dendritic cell technology to AiVita for ovarian cancer (candidate CLBS23) for worldwide use. Finally, our Treg
immune modulation platform has potential applications across multiple autoimmune and allergic diseases beyond TID for which we are exploring partnering
opportunities, including steroid-resistant asthma, multiple sclerosis, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, inflammatory bowel disease, graft versus host
disease, lupus and rheumatoid arthritis.

Our long term strategy focuses on advancing cell-based therapies to the market and assisting patients suffering from life-threatening medical
conditions. Coupling our clinical development expertise with our process development and manufacturing capabilities, we believe we are positioned to realize
potentially meaningful value increases within our own proprietary pipeline based on demonstration of proof-of-concept in man as well as process and
manufacturing advancements.

Financial Information & Liquidity

On March 11, 2016, PCT and Caladrius entered into a global licensing, development and equity collaboration with Hitachi Chemical, a Japanese-
based global conglomerate with a growing franchise in life sciences including regenerative medicine ("Hitachi Transaction"), and will receive an aggregate of
$25.0 million in cash, of which $22.5 million was received in March 2016, $1.25 million was received in June 2016, and the remainder is expected to be
received before the end of 2016. PCT will retain $10.0 million of the $25.0 million proceeds, and Caladrius received $15.0 million of the proceeds.
Concurrent with the Hitachi Transaction, Caladrius used $7.0 million of the proceeds to repay a portion of the outstanding loan with Oxford Finance. In
addition to the Hitachi Transaction, the Company anticipates requiring additional capital in order to grow the PCT business, to fund the development of
CLBS03, to fund other operating expenses and to make principal and interest payments on the loan with Oxford Finance.

To meet its short and long term liquidity needs, the Company currently expects to use existing cash and cash equivalents balances, revenue
generating activities and a variety of other means, including its common stock purchase agreements with Aspire Capital. Other sources of liquidity could
include additional potential issuances of debt or equity securities in public or private financings, partnerships and/or collaborations and/or sale of assets. In
addition, the Company will continue to seek as appropriate grants for scientific and clinical studies from various governmental agencies and foundations.
While the Company continues to seek capital through a number of means, there can be no assurance that additional financing will be available on acceptable
terms, if at all. If the Company is unable to access capital necessary to meet its long-term liquidity needs, it may have to delay or discontinue the development
of CLBS03, and/or the expansion of its business or raise funds on terms that the Company currently consider unfavorable. The Company's inability to raise
additional capital would also raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. These
unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and, as such, do not include any adjustments that might result from
the outcome of this uncertainty that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

On February 25, 2016, the Company received written notification from the Listing Qualifications Department of The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
(“NASDAQ”) notifying the Company that for the preceding 30 consecutive business days, the
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Company’s common stock did not maintain a minimum closing bid price of $1.00 (“Minimum Bid Price Requirement”) per share as required by NASDAQ
Listing Rule 5550(a)(2). The notice had no immediate effect on the listing or trading of the Company’s common stock and the common stock continues to
trade on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “CLBS.”
 

In accordance with NASDAQ Listing Rule 5810(c)(3)(A), the Company has a grace period of 180 calendar days, or until August 23, 2016, to regain
compliance with NASDAQ Listing Rule 5550(a)(2). Compliance can be achieved automatically and without further action if the closing bid price of the
Company’s stock is at or above $1.00 for a minimum of 10 consecutive business days at any time during the 180-day compliance period, in which case
NASDAQ will notify the Company of its compliance and the matter will be closed.

On July 28, 2016, the Company implemented a one-for-ten reverse split of its issued and outstanding shares of common stock (the “Reverse Stock
Split”), as authorized at the annual meeting of stockholders on June 22, 2016. The Reverse Stock Split became effective on July 27, 2016 at 5:00 pm and the
common stock of the Company began trading on The NASDAQ Capital Market on a post-split basis at the open of business on July 28, 2016. As of July 28,
2016, every ten shares of the Company’s issued and outstanding common stock were combined into one share of its common stock, except to the extent that
the Reverse Stock Split resulted in any of the Company’s stockholders owning a fractional share, which was rounded up to the next highest whole share. In
connection with the Reverse Stock Split, there was no change in the nominal par value per share of $0.001. The Reverse Stock Split was effectuated in order
to increase the per share trading price of the Company’s common stock to satisfy the $1.00 minimum bid price requirement for continued listing on The
NASDAQ Capital Market.

All share and per share amounts of common stock, options and warrants in the accompanying financial statements have been restated for all periods
to give retroactive effect to the Reverse Stock Split. Accordingly, the consolidated statements of equity reflect the impact of the Reverse Stock Split by
reclassifying from “common stock” to “Additional paid-in capital” in an amount equal to the par value of the decreased shares resulting from the Reverse
Stock Split.

 
Basis of Presentation
 

The accompanying unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X of the
SEC for interim financial information. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally accepted accounting
principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are unaudited, include all normal and recurring adjustments considered necessary to present fairly the Company’s financial position as of
June 30, 2016 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the periods presented. The unaudited consolidated financial statements herein should be
read together with the historical consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 included in our
2015 Form 10-K. Operating results for the six months ended June 30, 2016 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year
ending December 31, 2016.

    
Use of Estimates
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and other assumptions
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The Company makes critical estimates and assumptions in determining the fair values of goodwill for
potential goodwill impairments, useful lives of our tangible long lived assets, allowances for doubtful accounts, and stock-based awards values. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions.

An accounting policy is considered to be critical if it is important to the Company’s financial condition and results of operations and if it requires
management’s most difficult, subjective and complex judgments in its application.
 
Principles of Consolidation
 

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. and its wholly-owned and partially-owned subsidiaries
and affiliates as listed below. All intercompany activities have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Entity  Percentage of Ownership  Location
Caladrius Biosciences, Inc.  100%  United States of America
NeoStem Therapies, Inc.  100%  United States of America
Stem Cell Technologies, Inc.  100%  United States of America
Amorcyte, LLC  100%  United States of America
PCT, LLC, a Caladrius Company (1)  80.1%  United States of America
NeoStem Family Storage, LLC (1)  80.1%  United States of America
Athelos Corporation (2)  97.9%  United States of America
PCT Allendale, LLC (1)  80.1%  United States of America
NeoStem Oncology, LLC  100%  United States of America
_________________________________________________________________
(1) As of June 30, 2016, Hitachi's ownership interest was 19.9% (see Note 3).
(2) As of June 30, 2016, Becton Dickinson's ownership interest was 2.1%.

Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
 
In addition to the policies below, our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our
2015 Form 10-K. There were no changes to these policies during the six months ended June 30, 2016.

Concentration of Risks

We are subject to credit risk from our portfolio of cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities. Under our investment policy, we limit amounts
invested in such securities by credit rating, maturity, industry group, investment type and issuer, except for securities issued by the U.S. government. Cash is
held at major banks in the United States. Therefore, the Company is not exposed to any significant concentrations of credit risk from these financial
instruments. The goals of our investment policy, in order of priority, are as follows: safety and preservation of principal and diversification of risk; liquidity of
investments sufficient to meet cash flow requirements, and a competitive after-tax rate of return.

We are also subject to credit risk from our accounts receivable related to our services. The majority of our trade accounts receivable arises from services
in the United States.

For the six months ended June 30, 2016, the three largest customers represented 46% of total revenues recognized, the largest of which was 19%. As of
June 30, 2016, three customers represented 46% of our accounts receivable, the largest of which was 26%.

Share-Based Compensation  

The Company expenses all share-based payment awards to employees, directors, consultants, including grants of stock options, warrants, and
restricted stock, over the requisite service period based on the grant date fair value of the awards. Consultant awards are remeasured each reporting period
through vesting. For awards with performance-based vesting criteria, the Company estimates the probability of achievement of the performance criteria and
recognizes compensation expense related to those awards expected to vest. The Company determines the fair value of option awards using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model which uses both historical and current market data to estimate the fair value. This method incorporates various assumptions such as the
risk-free interest rate, expected volatility, expected dividend yield and expected life of the options or warrants. The fair value of the Company’s restricted
stock and restricted stock units is based on the closing market price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of purchase price over the fair value of identified net assets of businesses acquired. The Company reviews goodwill at least
annually, or at the time a triggering event is identified for possible impairment. Goodwill is reviewed for possible impairment between annual tests if an event
occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying value. The Company tests its
goodwill each year on December 31. The Company reviews the carrying value of goodwill utilizing an income approach model, and, where appropriate, a
market value approach is also utilized to supplement the discounted cash flow model. The Company makes assumptions regarding estimated future cash
flows, discount rates, long-term growth rates and market values to determine each reporting unit’s estimated fair value.
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If these estimates or related assumptions change in the future, the Company may be required to record impairment charges. In accordance with its accounting
policy, the Company tested goodwill for impairment as of December 31, 2015 and June 30, 2015 and determined as of December 31, 2015 goodwill valued at
$18.2 million related to the Company's Research and Development reporting unit was impaired.

Definite-Lived Intangible Assets 

Definite-lived intangible assets consist of customer lists, manufacturing technology, tradenames, patents and rights. These intangible assets are
amortized on a straight line basis over their respective useful lives. The Company reviews definite-lived intangible assets for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. If other events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset that the Company expects to hold and use may not be recoverable, the Company will estimate the undiscounted future
cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and/or its eventual disposition, and recognize an impairment loss, if any. The impairment loss, if
determined to be necessary, would be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. No triggering
events were noted in the quarter ended June 30, 2016 that would require interim impairment assessment.

Revenue Recognition
 

Clinical Services: The Company recognizes revenue for its (i) process development and (ii) clinical manufacturing services based on the terms of
individual contracts.

We recognize revenues when all of the following conditions are met:

• persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

• delivery has occurred or the services have been rendered;

• the fee is fixed or determinable; and

• collection is probable.

The Company considers signed contracts as evidence of an arrangement. The Company assesses whether the fee is fixed or determinable based on
the payment terms associated with the transaction and whether the payment terms are subject to refund or adjustment. The Company assesses cash
collectability based on a number of factors, including past collection history with the client and the client's creditworthiness. If the Company determines that
collectability is not reasonably assured, it defers revenue recognition until collectability becomes reasonably assured, which is generally upon receipt of the
cash. The Company's arrangements are generally non-cancellable, though clients typically have the right to terminate their agreement for cause if the
Company materially fails to perform.

Revenues associated with process development services generally contain multiple stages that do not have stand-alone values and are dependent upon
one another, and are recognized as revenue on a completed contract basis. Progress billings collected prior to contract completion are recorded as unearned
revenue until such time the contract is completed, which usually requires formal client acceptance.

Clinical manufacturing services are generally distinct arrangements whereby the Company is paid for time and materials or for fixed monthly amounts.
Revenue is recognized when contractual terms have been met.

Some client agreements include multiple elements, comprised of cell process development and cell manufacturing services.  The Company believes that
process development and clinical manufacturing services each have stand-alone value because these services can be provided separately by other companies.
In accordance with ASC Update No. 2009-13, “Revenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements,” the Company (1) separates
deliverables into separate units of accounting when deliverables are sold in a bundled arrangement and (2) allocates the arrangement's consideration to each
unit in the arrangement based on its relative selling price. 

Clinical Services Reimbursements: The Company separately charges the customers for the expenses associated with certain consumable resources
(reimbursable expenses) that are specified in each clinical services contract. On a monthly basis, the Company bills customers for reimbursable expenses and
immediately recognizes these billings as revenue, as the revenue is deemed earned as reimbursable expenses are incurred. For the three months ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015, clinical services reimbursements
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were $2.1 million and $0.9 million, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, clinical services reimbursements were $3.4 million and
$1.4 million, respectively.

 
Processing and Storage Services: The Company recognizes revenue related to the collection and cryopreservation of autologous adult stem cells when

the cryopreservation process is completed which is approximately twenty-four hours after cells have been collected. Revenue related to advance payments of
storage fees is recognized ratably over the period covered by the advance payments.

License Fees: PCT and Hitachi Chemical also entered into an exclusive license agreement for Asia pursuant from which PCT will receive $5.6 million
from Hitachi Chemical in three fee driven payments throughout 2016.  PCT licensed to Hitachi Chemical certain cell therapy technology and know-how
(including an exclusive license to use the PCT brand in Asia) and agreed to provide Hitachi Chemical with certain training and support.  As additional
consideration, Hitachi Chemical will pay PCT royalties on contract revenue generated in Asia for a minimum of ten years. The initial term of the License
Agreement is ten years and may be automatically extended for successive additional two year terms. The Company recognizes the payments as revenue on a
straight-line basis over the initial ten-year term. PCT has received $4.4 million under the Technology License Agreement through June 30, 2016. For the three
and six months ended June 30, 2016, the Company recognized $0.09 million and $0.1 million of license fee revenue, respectively. As of June 30, 2016, $0.4
million of Hitachi license fees were included in unearned revenue, and $3.8 million was included in unearned revenue - long-term.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)." The new revenue recognition standard provides a
five-step analysis to determine when and how revenue is recognized. The standard requires that a company recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. This ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and will be applied retrospectively to each period presented or as a
cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of ASU 2014-09 on its
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). This ASU requires that a lessee recognize lease assets and lease liabilities for
those leases classified as operating leases. The guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and will be applied at
the beginning of the earliest period presented using a modified retrospective approach. This ASU may have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements. The impact on the Company’s results of operations is currently being evaluated. The impact of the ASU is non-cash in nature and will not affect
the Company’s cash position.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting. This ASU simplifies several aspects of the
accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences, accounting for forfeitures, classification of awards as either equity
or liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows. The guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016,
with early adoption permitted. The guidance will be applied prospectively, retrospectively, or by means of a cumulative-effect adjustment to equity as of the
beginning of the period in which the guidance is adopted, dependent upon the specific amendment that is adopted within the ASU. The Company is currently
evaluating the effect that adopting this new guidance will have on the consolidated results of operations, cash flows, and financial position.

Note 3 – Collaboration and License Agreement

Hitachi

On March 11, 2016, PCT entered into a global collaboration that includes licensing, development and equity components with Hitachi Chemical to
develop our PCT business outside of the United States. This collaboration consists of an equity investment in and a license agreement with PCT.

Under the equity investment agreement, Hitachi Chemical purchased a 19.9% membership interest in PCT for $19.4 million of which $15.0 million
of proceeds was distributed to Caladrius from PCT and $4.4 million remained at PCT to be used for the continued expansion and improvements at PCT in
support of commercial product launch readiness as well as for general corporate purposes. Caladrius remains the majority shareholder retaining an 80.1%
ownership interest.
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PCT and Hitachi Chemical also entered into an exclusive license agreement for the acceleration of the creation of a global commercial cell therapy
development and manufacturing expertise in Asia pursuant from which PCT will receive $5.6 million from Hitachi Chemical in three fee driven payments
throughout 2016, $4.4 million of which has been received as of June 30, 2016.  PCT licensed certain cell therapy technology and know-how (including an
exclusive license in Asia) and agreed to provide Hitachi Chemical with certain training and support.  As additional consideration, Hitachi Chemical will pay
PCT royalties on contract revenue generated in Asia for a minimum of ten years.

Lastly, as part of the transaction, PCT and Hitachi Chemical agreed to explore the possibility of pursuing a collaboration in cell therapy contract
development and manufacturing in Europe.

Note 4 – Available-for-Sale-Securities
 

The following table is a summary of available-for-sale securities recorded in cash and cash equivalents or marketable securities in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets (in thousands):

 June 30, 2016  December 31, 2015

 Amortized
Cost  

Gross
Unrealized

Gains  
Gross

Unrealized
Losses  Estimated

Fair Value  Amortized
Cost  

Gross
Unrealized

Gains  
Gross

Unrealized
Losses  Estimated

Fair Value

Certificate of deposits $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 249.0  $ —  $ —  $ 249.0

Corporate debt securities —  —  —  —  1,047.2  —  —  1,047.2

Money market funds 2,567.0  —  —  2,567.0  837.7  —  —  837.7

Municipal debt securities 5,725.0  —  —  5,725.0  4,740.9  0.8  —  4,741.7

Total $ 8,292.0  $ —  $ —  $ 8,292.0  $ 6,874.8  $ 0.8  $ —  $ 6,875.6

Estimated fair values of available-for-sale securities are generally based on prices obtained from commercial pricing services. The following table
summarizes the classification of the available-for-sale debt securities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets (in thousands):

 June 30, 2016  December 31, 2015

Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,292.0  $ 6,875.6
Marketable securities —  —

Total $ 8,292.0  $ 6,875.6

The following table summarizes our portfolio of available-for-sale debt securities by contractual maturity (in thousands):
 

 June 30, 2016

 Amortized Cost  
Estimated Fair

Value

Less than one year $ 8,292.0  $ 8,292.0
Greater than one year —  —

Total $ 8,292.0  $ 8,292.0

Note 5 – Deferred Costs
 

Deferred costs, representing work in process for costs incurred on process development contracts that have not been completed, were $5.1 million
and $2.9 million as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The Company also has deferred revenue of approximately $6.3 million and $4.9
million of advance billings received as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, related to these contracts.
 
Note 6 – Loss Per Share
 

15



Index

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Company incurred net losses and therefore no common stock equivalents were utilized in
the calculation of loss per share as they are anti-dilutive. At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Company excluded the following potentially dilutive securities:

 June 30

 2016  2015

Stock Options 692,205  692,446
Warrants 460,047  351,895
Restricted Shares 70,046  28,105
 
Note 7 – Fair Value Measurements
 

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are being measured and reported are defined as the exchange price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal market at the measurement date (exit price). The
Company is required to classify fair value measurements in one of the following categories:
 

Level 1 inputs are defined as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access
at the measurement date.
 

Level 2 inputs are defined as inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly.
 

Level 3 inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities. Financial assets and liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement
requires judgment, and may affect the valuation of the fair value of assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy levels.

 
The Company had no financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2016, and December 31,

2015.

Note 8 – Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
 

The Company's goodwill was $7.0 million as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015. All goodwill resides in the PCT reporting unit.
 

The Company's intangible assets and related accumulated amortization as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 consisted of the following (in
thousands):
 

   June 30, 2016  December 31, 2015

 Useful Life  Gross  
Accumulated
Amortization  Net  Gross  

Accumulated
Amortization  Net

Customer list 10 years  $ 1,000.0  $ (545.1)  $ 454.9  $ 1,000.0  $ (495.1)  $ 504.9

Manufacturing technology 10 years  3,900.0  (2,125.9)  1,774.1  3,900.0  (1,930.9)  1,969.1

Tradename 10 years  800.0  (436.1)  363.9  800.0  (396.1)  403.9

Total Intangible Assets   $ 5,700.0  $ (3,107.1)  $ 2,592.9  $ 5,700.0  $ (2,822.1)  $ 2,877.9

 
Total intangible amortization expense was classified in the operating expense categories for the periods included below as follows (in thousands):
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 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015  2016  2015

Cost of revenue $ 77.7  $ 79.2  $ 157.3  $ 153.9
Research and development 19.8  27.1  37.7  58.7
Selling, general and administrative 45.0  45.0  90.0  90.0

Total $ 142.5  $ 151.3  $ 285.0  $ 302.6

    
Estimated intangible amortization expense for the succeeding five years is as follows (in thousands):

2016 $ 285
2017 570.0
2018 570.0
2019 570.0
2020 570.0
Thereafter 27.9

Total $ 2,592.9

Note 9 – Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 were as follows (in thousands):

 June 30, 2016  December 31, 2015

Salaries, employee benefits and related taxes $ 3,160.8  $ 2,771.2
Professional fees 342  480.7
Other 2,699.6  2,946.5

Total $ 6,202.4  $ 6,198.4

Note 10 – Debt
 
Notes Payable
 

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company had notes payable of approximately $1.3 million and $1.8 million, respectively. The
notes relate to certain insurance policies and equipment financings, require monthly payments, and mature within one to three years.
 
Long-Term Debt

On September 26, 2014, the Company entered into a loan and security agreement (the “Loan and Security Agreement”) with Oxford Finance LLC
(together with its successors and assigns, the “Lender”) pursuant to which the Lender disbursed $15.0 million (the “Loan”). The debt offering/issuance costs
have been recorded as debt issuance costs in other assets in the consolidated balance sheet, and will be amortized to interest expense throughout the life of the
Loan using the effective interest rate method.
 

On March 11, 2016, upon execution of the Hitachi Transaction, the Company and the Lender entered into an amendment to the Loan and Security
Agreement whereby (i) the Company paid $7.0 million to Lender, comprising principal, interest and early termination fees, (ii) the Company's subsidiaries
PCT, PCT Allendale, LLC, and NeoStem Family Storage, LLC (collectively the "Removed Borrowers") were removed as borrowers under the Loan, (iii)
Lender's security interests in any and all assets of the Removed Borrowers were released, (iv) the interest only period on the remaining outstanding Loan
balance was extended until January 1, 2017, and (v) in the event the Company receives gross proceeds from the sale or issuance of any equity securities or
subordinated debt, or any partnership, licenses, collaboration, dividend, grant or asset sale through March 31, 2017, 20% of such proceeds will be paid to
Lender, up to a $3.0 million maximum as additional partial repayment of Loan. If 20% of such proceeds in aggregate is less than $3.0 million by March 31,
2017, then the Company will make a lump sum payment equal to the difference by March 31, 2017. The outstanding balance was approximately $8.7 million
and $15.0 million at June 30, 2016 and December 31,
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2015, respectively, of which $5.0 million is payable within twelve months as of June 30, 2016.

The Company is making interest-only payments on the outstanding amount of the Loan on a monthly basis at a rate of 8.50% per annum.
Commencing on January 1, 2017, the Company will make 21 consecutive monthly payments of principal and interest. The Loan matures on September 1,
2018. At its option, the Company may prepay all amounts owed under the Loan and Security Agreement (including all accrued and unpaid interest), subject to
a prepayment fee that is determined based on the date the loan is prepaid. The Company is also required to pay Lender a final payment fee equal to 8% of the
Loan. The final payment fee will be amortized to interest expense throughout the life of the Loan using the effective interest rate method. The Company paid
a facility fee in the amount of $100,000 in connection with Loan.

    
Under the Loan and Security Agreement, the Lender holds a security interest ("Lenders' Security Interest") in all of the Company’s property,

excluding the security interests in any and all assets of the Removed Borrowers, and excluding intellectual property and certain other assets and exemptions.
The Lender also holds a security interest in the shares owned by the Company in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Loan and Security Agreement restricts the
ability of the Company to: (a) convey, lease, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any part of Lenders' Security Interest and (b) incur any additional
indebtedness. The Loan and Security Agreement provides for standard indemnification of Lender and contains representations, warranties and certain
covenants of the Company. Upon the occurrence of an event of default by the Company under the Loan and Security Agreement, Lender will have customary
acceleration, collection and foreclosure remedies. There are no financial covenants associated to the Loan and Security Agreement. As of June 30, 2016, the
Company was in compliance with all covenants under the Loan and Security Agreement.

Estimated future principal payments, interest, and fees due under the Loan and Security Agreement are as follows:
 

Years Ending December 31, (in millions)

2016 $ 0.4
2017 6.8
2018 3.0

Total $ 10.2
 

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, the Company recognized $0.2 million and $0.5 million of interest expense, respectively, related to
the Loan and Security Agreement. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, the Company recognized $0.3 million and $0.6 million of interest
expense, respectively, related to the Loan and Security Agreement.

Note 11 – Redeemable Securities

Under the Hitachi Transaction (see Note 3), Hitachi may, at any time following the 10th anniversary of the Hitachi Transaction closing date on March 11,
2016, have the right on one occasion to require Caladrius or PCT to purchase all or some of the equity securities in PCT then held by Hitachi ("Hitachi Put
Right") for an amount equal to the lower of (i) the fair market value of the Hitachi equity holdings and (ii) the original purchase price paid of $19.4 million on
March 11, 2016 for its 19.9% ownership interest, plus interest at a rate of 2.0% per annum compounded annually; provided, however, that if Hitachi
ownership interests increases subsequent to its initial ownership interest, and it offers to sell its equity holdings in excess of 21% of PCT’s outstanding equity
securities, then the Company shall be required to purchase all such equity holdings of Hitachi but in no event shall the aggregate purchase price of such
Hitachi equity holdings exceed $20.5 million plus interest at the rate of 2.0% per annum compounded annually.

Since Hitachi has the right to deliver the equity interests in PCT it holds in exchange for cash from Caladrius or PCT, the initial $19.4 million value of the
non-controlling interest is considered redeemable equity, requiring it to be treated as mezzanine equity. Redeemable non-controlling interest is required to be
initially measured at the initial carrying amount. If the non-controlling interest is not currently redeemable and also not probable of becoming redeemable
(e.g., it is not probable a contingency that triggers redemption will be met), the non-controlling interest should be classified in mezzanine equity.

Note 12 – Shareholders' Equity

Reverse Stock Split

On July 28, 2016, the Company implemented the Reverse Stock Split, as authorized at the annual meeting of stockholders on June 22, 2016 and
unanimously approved by the Company’s board of directors on July 22, 2016. The Reverse Stock Split
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became effective on July 27, 2016 at 5:00pm and the common stock of the Company began trading on The NASDAQ Capital Market on a post-split basis at
the open of business on July 28, 2016. As of July 28, 2016, every ten shares of the Company’s issued and outstanding common stock were combined into one
share of its common stock, except to the extent that the Reverse Stock Split resulted in any of the Company’s stockholders owning a fractional share, which
was rounded up to the next highest whole share. In connection with the Reverse Stock Split, there was no change in the nominal par value per share of
$0.001.

All share and per share amounts of common stock, options and warrants in the accompanying financial statements have been restated for all periods
to give retroactive effect to the Reverse Stock Split. Accordingly, the consolidated statements of equity reflect the impact of the Reverse Stock Split by
reclassifying from “common stock” to “Additional paid-in capital” in an amount equal to the par value of the decreased shares resulting from the Reverse
Stock Split.

Equity Issuances

March 2016 Private Placement

On March 10, 2016, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain investors, pursuant to which the Company issued and
sold in a private placement an aggregate of 141,844 shares of common stock and two-year warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 141,844 shares of the
Company's common stock, at an exercise price of $10.00 per share. The unit purchase price for a share of the Company's common stock and warrant to
purchase one share of the Company's common stock was $7.05 per unit, with $1.0 million of gross proceeds received by the Company. On April 8, 2016, the
Company filed a registration statement on Form S-3 to register the shares of common stock and the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the
warrants acquired in the private placement, which registration statement became effective on June 7, 2016.

Aspire Purchase Agreements

In November 2015, the Company entered into a common stock purchase agreement (the "Purchase Agreement") with Aspire Capital Fund, LLC, an
Illinois limited liability company (“Aspire Capital”), which provides that, subject to certain terms and conditions, Aspire Capital is committed to purchase up
to an aggregate of $30 million of shares (limited to a maximum of approximately 1.1 million shares, unless stockholder approval is obtained or certain
minimum sale price levels are reached) of the Company's common stock over a 24-month term. As consideration for entering into the Purchase Agreement,
the Company issued 84,270 shares of its common stock to Aspire Capital. During the six months ended June 30, 2016, the Company issued 5,000 shares of
common stock under the Purchase Agreement for gross proceeds of $0.03 million. Overall, as of June 30, 2016, the Company has issued 109,270 shares
under the Purchase Agreement for gross proceeds of $0.3 million.

Under the Purchase Agreement, at the Company’s discretion, it may present Aspire Capital with purchase notices from time to time to purchase the
Company’s common stock, provided certain price, trading volume and conditions, including NASDAQ's trading requirements, are met. The purchase price
for the shares of common stock is based upon one of two formulas set forth in the Purchase Agreement depending on the type of purchase notice the
Company submits to Aspire Capital, and is based on market prices of the Company’s common stock (in the case of regular purchases) or a discount of 5%
applied to volume weighted average prices (in the case of VWAP purchases), in each case as determined by parameters defined in the Purchase Agreements.
We have filed a registration statement with the SEC and a related prospectus supplement that covers the offering of shares of our common stock subject to the
Purchase Agreement, and therefore can initiate sales to Aspire Capital at any time, subject to the limitation discussed above.

We are party to one other existing agreement with Aspire Capital (the "May 2015 Purchase Agreement"). The registration statement we previously filed
with the SEC to cover offerings of shares of our common stock subject to the May 2015 Purchase Agreement has expired, and we have not, and currently
have no intention to include such shares in a registration statement filed with the SEC. Unless and until we include such shares in a registration statement filed
with the SEC, we are unable to initiate sales to Aspire under the May 2015 Purchase Agreement. Under the May 2015 Purchase Agreement, Aspire Capital is
committed to purchase up to an aggregate of $30 million of shares. As consideration for entering into the May 2015 Purchase Agreement, the Company
issued 36,484 shares of its common stock to Aspire Capital. The Company has not issued any additional shares under the May 2015 Purchase Agreement.

Stock Options and Warrants

The following table summarizes the activity for stock options and warrants for the six months ended June 30, 2016, as adjusted for the Reverse Stock
Split:
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  Stock Options  Warrants

  Shares  Weighted Average
Exercise Price  

Weighted Average
Remaining

Contractual Term
(Years)  

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value (In

Thousands)  Shares  Weighted Average
Exercise Price  

Weighted Average
Remaining

Contractual Term
(Years)  

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value (In

Thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2015  666,348  $ 64.60  6.88  $ 0.1  321,404  $ 137.20  1.26  $ —

                 

Changes during the period:                 

Granted  169,038  6.20      141,845  122.60     

Exercised  —  —      —  —     

Forfeited  (56,024)  35.90      —  —     

Expired  (87,030)  46.50      (3,200)  147.50     

Outstanding at June 30, 2016  692,332  $ 55.00  7.34  $ 18.9  460,049  $ 98.00  1.06  $ —
Vested at June 30, 2016 or expected to
vest in the future  675,324  $ 56.00  7.29  $ 18.4  460,049  $ 98.00  1.06  $ —

Vested at June 30, 2016  489,652  $ 71.00  6.55  $ 9.0  460,300  $ 98.00  1.06  $ —

Restricted Stock

During the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Company issued restricted stock for services as follows (in thousands, except share data):

  Six Months Ended June 30,

   2016  2015

Number of Restricted Stock Issued  107,719  127,606

Value of Restricted Stock Issued  $ 651.7  $ 4,029.5

The weighted average estimated fair value of restricted stock issued for services in the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $6.05 and $31.58
per share, respectively. The fair value of the restricted stock was determined using the Company’s closing stock price on the date of issuance, as adjusted for
the Reverse Stock Split.

Note 13 – Share-Based Compensation

Share-based Compensation

We utilize share-based compensation in the form of stock options, warrants and restricted stock.  The following table summarizes the components of
share-based compensation expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):

 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015  2016  2015

Cost of goods sold $ 11.7  $ 378.2  $ 136.0  $ 495.1
Research and development 6.0  1,104.2  98.3  1,526.9
Selling, general and administrative 317.8  2,933.9  1,000.8  6,110.1

Total share-based compensation expense $ 335.5  $ 4,416.3  $ 1,235.1  $ 8,132.1

        

Total compensation cost related to nonvested awards not yet recognized and the weighted-average periods over which the awards are expected to be
recognized at June 30, 2016 were as follows (in thousands):

 Stock Options  Restricted Stock

Unrecognized compensation cost $ 1,696.8  $ 551.0
Expected weighted-average period in years of compensation cost to be recognized 2.09  2.02
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Total fair value of shares vested and the weighted average estimated fair values of shares granted for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were
as follows, as adjusted for the Reverse Stock Split (in thousands):

 Stock Options  Warrants

 Six Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015  2016  2015

Total fair value of shares vested $ 1,153.1  $ 4,915.3  $ —  $ 14.0
Weighted average estimated fair value of shares granted $ 4.02  $ 2.17  $ —  $ —

Valuation Assumptions

The fair value of stock options and warrants at the date of grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The expected volatility is
based upon historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The expected term for the options is based upon observation of actual time elapsed between date of
grant and exercise of options for all employees. The expected term for the warrants is based upon the contractual term of the warrants.

Note 14 – Income Taxes
 

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had approximately $221.5 million of Federal net operating loss carryforwards ("NOLs") available to offset
future taxable income expiring from 2025 through 2035. In accordance with Section 382 of the Internal Revenue code, the usage of the Company’s NOLs
could be limited in the event of a change in ownership. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income during the period when those temporary differences become deductible.  If a change of ownership did occur there would be an annual limitation on
the usage of the Company’s losses which are available through 2035.

In assessing the ability to realize deferred tax assets, including the NOLs, the Company assesses the available positive and negative evidence to estimate
if sufficient future taxable income will be generated to utilize its existing deferred tax assets.  Based on its assessment, the Company has provided a full
valuation allowance against its net deferred tax assets as the Company's ability to generate taxable income remains uncertain at this time.

Deferred tax liabilities were $1.0 million and $0.9 million as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, and relate to the taxable temporary
differences on the goodwill recognized in the PCT acquisition in 2011. The taxable temporary differences, which are tax deductible and will be amortized
over 15 years, will continue to increase the deferred tax liability balance over the amortization period, with an associated charge to the deferred tax provision
in each period. The deferred tax liability will only reverse when the indefinite-lived asset is sold, impaired, or reclassified from an indefinite-lived asset to a
finite-lived asset.

As of June 30, 2016, management does not believe the Company has any material uncertain tax positions that would require it to measure and reflect the
potential lack of sustainability of a position on audit in its financial statements. The Company will continue to evaluate its uncertain tax positions in future
periods to determine if measurement and recognition in its financial statements is necessary. The Company does not believe there will be any material
changes in its unrecognized tax positions over the next year.

 
The Company's federal tax returns are currently being audited for the years 2012 and 2013. For years prior to 2011 the federal statute of limitations is

closed for assessing tax. The Company’s state tax returns remain open to examination for a period of three to four years from date of filing. The Company
ceased doing business in China in 2012.  After 2012, the Company had no foreign tax filing obligations.  The foreign returns filed for 2012 and prior are
subject to examination for five years.

Note 15 – Commitments and Contingencies
 
Lease Commitments

 
We entered into an assignment agreement with an unaffiliated third party, effective February 19, 2015, for general office space located in Basking Ridge, NJ.
This property is used as the Company's corporate headquarters. The space is approximately 18,000 rentable square feet. The base monthly rent is currently
$31,875 and the lease term ends July 31, 2020. In addition, there are two five-year renewal options. In connection with the assumption of the lease, the third
party (a) conveyed its rights in various scheduled furniture and equipment and (b) paid the Company approximately $580,000. The amount paid to the
Company included a security deposit of approximately $115,000. The Company also leases facilities in New York, NY, Irvine, CA, and Mountain View, CA,
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of which certain have escalation clauses and renewal options, and also leases equipment under certain noncancelable operating leases that expire from time to
time through 2021.

A summary of future minimum rental payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining terms in excess of one year as of June 30,
2016 are as follows (in thousands):  

Years ended  Operating Leases

2016  $ 1,041.7
2017  1,866.9
2018  1,037.1
2019  990.1
2020 and thereafter  960.2

Total minimum lease payments  $ 5,896.0
 

Expense incurred under operating leases was approximately $1.0 million and $0.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
 

Contingencies
 

We have entered into a strategic collaboration with Sanford Research with the goal of developing a therapy for the treatment of T1D. The initial focus of
the collaboration will be the execution of a prospective, randomized, placebo-controlled, double-blind clinical trial (The Sanford Project: T-Rex Study) to
evaluate the safety and efficacy of the Company’s T regulatory cell product candidate, CLBS03, in adolescents with recent onset T1D. The Phase 2 study has
an open and active IND in place and subject enrollment commenced in the first quarter of 2016. We will be initially responsible for the supply of all study
drug to the first 18 enrolled patients while Sanford will assume all patient and clinical site costs for subjects enrolled in their two centers as well as the
expense associated with general clinical monitoring services.

Under license agreements with third parties the Company is typically required to pay maintenance fees, make milestone payments and/or pay other fees
and expenses and pay royalties upon commercialization of products. The Company also sponsors research at various academic institutions, which research
agreements generally provide us with an option to license new technology discovered during the course of the sponsored research.

Under the Hitachi Transaction, Hitachi may require the Company to purchase all of its ownership in PCT if a Change of Control has occurred (as defined
in the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of PCT), and if such Change of Control can reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on
PCT’s ability to conduct its business in the ordinary course consistent with its past practice and its then current annual budget, at a price to be agreed upon by
mutual agreement, provided, however, if mutual agreement is not obtained, the price will be determined by independent valuation firms.

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, either asserted or unasserted, that arise in the ordinary course of business.
While the outcome of pending claims cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company does not believe that the outcome of any pending claims will have a
material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition or operating results.

Note 15 – Subsequent Events
 
Reverse Stock Split

On July 28, 2016, the Company implemented the Reverse Stock Split, as authorized at the annual meeting of stockholders on June 22, 2016 and
unanimously approved by the Company’s board of directors on July 22, 2016. The Reverse Stock Split became effective on July 27, 2016 at 5:00pm and the
common stock of the Company began trading on The NASDAQ Capital Market on a post-split basis at the open of business on July 28, 2016. As of July 28,
2016, every ten shares of the Company’s issued and outstanding common stock were combined into one share of its common stock, except to the extent that
the Reverse Stock Split resulted in any of the Company’s stockholders owning a fractional share, which was rounded up to the next highest whole share. In
connection with the Reverse Stock Split, there was no change in the nominal par value per share of $0.001.

All share and per share amounts of common stock, options and warrants in the accompanying financial statements have been restated for all periods
to give retroactive effect to the Reverse Stock Split. Accordingly, the consolidated statements of
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equity reflect the impact of the Reverse Stock Split by reclassifying from “common stock” to “Additional paid-in capital” in an amount equal to the par value
of the decreased shares resulting from the Reverse Stock Split.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
 

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking statements that
involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various
factors, including those set forth under “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” herein and under “Risk Factors” in our 2015 Form 10-K.
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this
Quarterly Report and in our 2015 Form 10-K.
 
Overview
 

Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. (“we,” “us,” "our," “Caladrius” or the “Company”), through its subsidiary, PCT, LLC, a Caladrius CompanyTM ("PCT"),
is a leading provider of development and manufacturing services to the cell and cell-based gene therapy industry. PCT has significant cell therapy-specific
experience and expertise, an expansive list of noteworthy clients and significant revenue growth over the past two years. Notably, PCT and Hitachi Chemical
Co. America, Ltd. and Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. (each independently or collectively referred to herein as "Hitachi Chemical") entered into a strategic
collaboration to accelerate the creation of a global commercial cell therapy development and manufacturing enterprise with deep engineering expertise.
Caladrius leverages both its internal specialized cell therapy clinical development expertise and PCT’s prowess to select and develop early-stage cell therapy
candidates with the intention of partnering these candidates post proof-of-concept in man to both generate value for our shareholders and to expand PCT’s
client base. Our current product candidate, CLBS03, is a T regulatory cell (“Treg”) clinical Phase 2 therapy targeting adolescents with recent-onset type 1
diabetes.

Cell Therapy Development and Manufacturing

PCT is a leading cell therapy development and manufacturing provider (often called a contract development and manufacturing organization, or
"CDMO"), specializing in cell and cell-based gene therapies. PCT offers high-quality development and manufacturing capabilities (e.g., current Good
Manufacturing Practice (“cGMP”) manufacturing systems and facilities), quality systems, cell and tissue processing, logistics, storage and distribution and
engineering solutions (e.g., process and assay development, optimization and automation) to clients with therapeutic candidates at all stages of development.
PCT produces clinical supplies and ultimately, intends also to produce commercial product for its clients. PCT has worked with over 100 clients and produced
over 20,000 cell therapy products since it was founded 17 years ago. PCT’s manufacturing services are designed to reduce the capital investment and time
required by clients to advance their development programs compared to conducting the process development and manufacturing in-house. PCT has
demonstrated regulatory expertise, including the support of over 50 U.S. and European Union ("EU") regulatory filings for clients and expertise across
multiple cell types and therapeutic applications, including immunotherapy (e.g. CAR-T therapies), neuro/endocrine therapies, hematopoietic replacement and
tissue repair/regeneration. PCT offers a complete development pathway for its clients, with services supporting preclinical through commercial phase, all
underpinned by timely process optimization and automation support. We currently operate facilities qualified under cGMPs in each of Allendale, New Jersey
and Mountain View, California, including EU-grade production suites. On March 11, 2016, PCT entered into a strategic collaboration and license agreement
with Hitachi Chemical to accelerate the creation of a global commercial cell therapy development and manufacturing enterprise with deep engineering
expertise. PCT is positioned to expand its capacity both in the United States and internationally, as needed. As the industry continues to mature and a growing
number of cell therapy companies approach commercialization, we believe that PCT is well positioned to serve as an external manufacturing partner of choice
for commercial-stage cell therapy companies.

CLBS03

We are developing, through the utilization of or core development and manufacturing expertise, a product candidate that is an innovative therapy for
type 1 diabetes mellitus ("TID"). This therapy is based on a proprietary platform technology for immunomodulation. We have selected as an initial target the
unmet medical need of pediatric patients who are newly diagnosed with T1D. This program is based on the use of Tregs to treat diseases caused by
imbalances in an individual's immune system. This novel approach seeks to restore immune balance by enhancing Treg number and function. Tregs are a
natural part of the human immune system and regulate the activity of T effector cells; the cells that are responsible for protecting the body from viruses and
other foreign antigens. When Tregs function properly, only harmful foreign materials are attacked by T effector cells. In autoimmune disease, however, it is
thought that deficient Treg activity and numbers permit the T effector cells to attack the
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body's own beneficial cells. In the case of T1D, there are currently no curative treatments, only lifelong insulin therapy, which often does not prevent serious
co-morbidities. Two Phase 1 clinical trials of this technology in T1D patients demonstrated safety and tolerance, feasibility of manufacturing, an implied
durability of effect and an early indication of efficacy through the preservation of beta cell function. In the first quarter of 2016 we commenced patient
enrollment in the first of two cohorts in The Sanford Project: T-Rex Study, a Phase 2 prospective, randomized, placebo-controlled, double-blind clinical trial
to evaluate the safety and efficacy of our Treg product candidate, CLBS03, in adolescents with recent onset T1D. After the three-month follow-up of the first
cohort of 18 patients, which is expected by year end 2016, an initial safety analysis of the data and early analysis of immunological biomarkers will be
undertaken. Satisfactory evaluation of the safety of the initial cohort as agreed by us, our independent Data Safety Monitoring Board and the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration ("FDA") will then prompt the enrollment of the remaining 93 patients. A subsequent interim analysis of efficacy is planned after
approximately 50% of patients reach the six-month follow-up milestone. We entered into a strategic collaboration with Sanford Research to support the
execution of this trial. Sanford Research is a U.S.-based non-profit research organization that supports an emerging translational research center focused on
finding a cure for T1D. CLBS03 has been granted Fast Track and Orphan Drug designations from the FDA as well as Advanced Therapeutic Medicinal
Product classification from the European Medicines Agency.

Additional Technology Platforms
    
Our broad intellectual property portfolio of cell therapy assets includes notable programs available for out-licensing and partnering in order to

continue their clinical development. These include platforms using tumor cell/dendritic cell technology for immuno-oncology and CD34 technology for
ischemic repair. Both have the benefit of promising Phase 2 clinical data and are applicable to multiple indications. The immuno-oncology platform is based
on our extensive intellectual property portfolio and includes CLBS20, a candidate for metastatic melanoma which was investigated in two Phase 2 trials and
recently in a discontinued Phase 3 clinical trial. With respect to our ischemic repair platform, the Company's Clinical Trial Notification for pivotal Phase 2
trial investigating CLBS12 (a candidate for critical limb ischemia "CLI") was submitted to the Japanese Pharmaceutical and Medical Devices Agency
("PMDA") and was cleared to proceed. The protocol design was agreed with PMDA and if successful, could provide the basis for a conditional approval
under Japan's favorable regenerative medicine law. We are seeking to collaborate on CLBS 12 with development and/or manufacturing partners. In January
2016, we out-licensed our CD34 technology to SPS Cardio, LLC for chronic heart failure and acute myocardial infarction (candidate CLBS10) in India and
other designated territories and non-major world markets outside the United States. In February 2016, we out-licensed a cell-derived dermatological product
technology for topical skin application to AiVita Biomedical, Inc. ("AiVita"), which it intends to distribute through ALPHAEON Corporation. Furthermore,
in May 2016, we out-licensed our tumor cell/dendritic cell technology to AiVita for ovarian cancer (candidate CLBS23) for worldwide use. Finally, our Treg
immune modulation platform has potential applications across multiple autoimmune and allergic diseases beyond TID for which we are exploring partnering
opportunities, including steroid-resistant asthma, multiple sclerosis, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, inflammatory bowel disease, graft versus host
disease, lupus and rheumatoid arthritis.

Our long term strategy focuses on advancing cell-based therapies to the market and assisting patients suffering from life-threatening medical
conditions. Coupling our clinical development expertise with our process development and manufacturing capabilities, we believe we are positioned to realize
potentially meaningful value increases within our own proprietary pipeline based on demonstration of proof-of-concept in man as well as process and
manufacturing advancements.

Recent Developments - Reverse Stock Split

On July 28, 2016, we implemented a one-for-ten reverse split of out issued and outstanding shares of common stock (the “Reverse Stock Split”), as
authorized at the annual meeting of stockholders on June 22, 2016. The Reverse Stock Split became effective on July 27, 2016 and our common stock began
trading on The NASDAQ Capital Market on a post-split basis at the open of business on July 28, 2016. As of July 28, 2016, every ten shares of our issued
and outstanding common stock were combined into one share of our common stock, except to the extent that the Reverse Stock Split resulted in any of our
stockholders owning a fractional share, which was rounded up to the next highest whole share. In connection with the Reverse Stock Split, there was no
change in the nominal par value per share of $0.001. The Reverse Stock Split was effectuated in order to increase the per share trading price of our common
stock to satisfy the $1.00 minimum bid price requirement for continued listing on The NASDAQ Capital Market.

Unless otherwise noted, all references in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to number of shares of common stock, price per share and weighted
average shares of common stock have been adjusted to reflect the Reverse Stock Split on a retroactive basis for all periods presented.

Results of Operations
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Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2016 Compared to Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2015
 

Net loss for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was approximately $7.9 million compared to $17.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015.
Net loss for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was approximately $19.9 million compared to $36.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015.

Net loss for both the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 included the impact of the Company's decision to no longer pursue further development
of CLBS10 upon completion of the ongoing PreSERVE-AMI Phase 2 clinical study. Based on this decision, the Company determined that in process research
and development ("IPR&D") valued at $9.4 million was fully impaired (recorded in impairment of intangible assets in our consolidated statement of
operations), and the associated deferred tax liability of $3.7 million was reversed (recorded in benefit from income taxes in our consolidated statement of
operations). In addition, the fair value of contingent consideration associated with earn out payments on CLBS10 future revenues was reduced from $5.6
million to $0 as of June 30, 2015 (recorded in other income in our consolidated statement of operations). The overall net impact for these changes was a
$20,000 increase in net loss.

Revenues

For the three months ended June 30, 2016, total revenues were approximately $8.3 million compared to $5.9 million for the three months ended June 30,
2015, representing an increase of $2.4 million, or 41%. Revenues were comprised of the following (in thousands):

 Three Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015

Clinical Services $ 4,767.9  $ 4,017.6
Clinical Services Reimbursables 2,112.0  856.1
Processing and Storage Services 1,333.6  993.3
Other 87.0  —

 $ 8,300.4  $ 5,867.0

• Clinical Services were approximately $4.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $4.0 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2015, representing an increase of approximately $0.8 million or 19%, and was comprised of the following:

◦ Process Development Revenue - Process development revenues were approximately $0.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016
compared to $1.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015. In accordance with our revenue recognition policy, process development
revenue is recognized upon contract completion (i.e., when the services under a particular contract are completed). Process development
revenue will continue to fluctuate from period to period as a result of our process development revenue recognition policy, and the timing
upon when services for a contract are completed. Accordingly, unearned revenue relating to process development contracts increased from
$4.2 million as of March 31, 2016 and $5.4 million as of June 30, 2016, representing billings on contracts that have not been completed.

◦ Clinical Manufacturing Revenue - Clinical manufacturing revenues were approximately $4.4 million for the three months ended June 30,
2016 compared to $2.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015. The increase is primarily due to an increase in the number of
patients our customers have enrolled and treated in clinical trials, which number varies depending on the stage of the clinical trial.

• Clinical Services Reimbursables were approximately $2.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $0.9 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2015, representing an increase of approximately $1.3 million, or 147%. Generally, clinical services reimbursables correlate
with clinical services revenues. However, differences in the cost of supplies to be reimbursed can vary greatly from contract to contract based on the
cost of supplies needed for each client's manufacturing and development process and may impact this correlation. In addition, our terms for billing
reimbursable expenses do not include a significant mark-up in the acquisition cost of such consumables, and as a result, changes in this revenue
category have little impact on our gross margin and net loss.
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• Processing and Storage Services were approximately $1.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $1.0 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2015, representing an increase of approximately $0.3 million or 34%. The increase was primarily due to higher volume for our
oncology stem cell processing services.

For the six months ended June 30, 2016, total revenues were approximately $15.8 million compared to $9.0 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2015, representing an increase of $6.8 million, or 75%. Revenues were comprised of the following (in thousands):

 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015

Clinical Services $ 10,068.8  $ 5,480.6
Clinical Services Reimbursables 3,373.1  1,384.6
Processing and Storage Services 2,243.2  2,054.1
Other 104.8  120.0

 $ 15,789.9  $ 9,039.2

• Clinical Services were approximately $10.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $5.5 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2015, representing an increase of approximately $4.6 million, or 84%, and was comprised of the following:

◦ Process Development Revenue - Process development revenues were approximately $1.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016
compared to $2.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015. In accordance with our revenue recognition policy, process development
revenue is recognized upon contract completion (i.e., when the services under a particular contract are completed). Process development
revenue will continue to fluctuate from period to period as a result of our process development revenue recognition policy, and the timing
upon when services for a contract are completed. Accordingly, unearned revenue relating to process development contracts increased from
$4.2 million as of December 31, 2015 to $5.4 million as of June 30, 2016, representing billings on contracts that have not been completed.

◦ Clinical Manufacturing Revenue - Clinical manufacturing revenues were approximately $8.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016
compared to $3.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015. The increase is primarily due to an increase in the number of patients our
customers have enrolled and treated in clinical trials, which number varies depending on the stage of the clinical trial.

• Clinical Services Reimbursables were approximately $3.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $1.4 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2015, representing an increase of approximately $2.0 million, or 144%. Generally, clinical services reimbursables correlate with
clinical services revenues. However, differences in the cost of supplies to be reimbursed can vary greatly from contract to contract based on the cost of
supplies needed for each client's manufacturing and development process and may impact this correlation. In addition, our terms for billing
reimbursable expenses do not include a significant mark-up in the acquisition cost of such consumables, and as a result, changes in this revenue
category have little impact on our gross margin and net loss.

• Processing and Storage Services were approximately $2.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $2.1 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2015, representing an increase of approximately $0.2 million, or 9%. The increase was primarily due to higher volume for our
oncology stem cell processing services.

Operating Costs and Expenses

 For the three months ended June 30, 2016, operating costs and expenses totaled $15.8 million compared to $31.5 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2015, representing a decrease of $15.8 million, or 50%. Operating costs and expenses were comprised of the following:

• Cost of revenues were approximately $7.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $5.8 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2015, representing an increase of $1.3 million, or 22%. Overall, gross margin for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was $1.2 million, or
15%, compared to $0.1 million, or 1% for the three months ended June 30, 2015. Gross margin percentages generally will increase/decrease as
Clinical Services revenue increases/
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decreases. However, gross margin percentages will also fluctuate from period to period due to the mix of service and reimbursable revenues and
costs.

 
• Research and development expenses were approximately $4.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $7.6 million for the

three months ended June 30, 2015, representing a decrease of approximately $3.6 million, or 47%.

◦ Immune Modulation - Immune modulation expenses, including our recently initiated Phase 2 T1D, were $1.8 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2016, representing an increase of $0.7 million compared to the three months ended June 30, 2015.

◦ Immuno-oncology - Immuno-oncology expenses, which are primarily associated with the close-out activities for the Intus Phase 3 clinical
trial for the immunotherapy product candidate CLBS20, were $1.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016, representing a
decrease of $2.0 million compared to the three months ended June 30, 2015. In January 2016, we discontinued the clinical development of
CLBS20. Accordingly, we expect expenses to decrease to zero as close-out activities are completed.

◦ Ischemic Repair - Ischemic repair expenses were $0.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016, representing a decrease of
approximately $1.1 million compared to the three months ended June 30, 2015. The decrease is primarily due to lower program expenses
associated with the decision to only conduct clinical study activity for a critical limb ischemia development program in Japan with a partner,
and lower expenses associated with the close-out activities of the PreSERVE-AMI Phase 2 study for CLBS10. Expenses associated with
CLBS10 are expected to decrease to zero as close-out activities are completed.

◦ Other - Other research and development expenses were $0.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016, representing a decrease of
approximately $1.2 million compared to the three months ended June 30, 2015. The decrease was primarily due to approximately $1.1
million of lower equity-based compensation expenses during the three months ended June 30, 2016 compared to the prior year.

• Impairment of intangible assets for the three months ended June 30, 2015 relates to the full impairment of IPR&D associated with CLBS10 valued at
$9.4 million, based on the Company's decision that it will not pursue further development of CLBS10 upon completion of the ongoing PreSERVE-
AMI Phase 2 clinical study.

• Selling, general and administrative expenses were approximately $4.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $8.7 million for
the three months ended June 30, 2015, representing a decrease of approximately $4.0 million, or 46%. Equity-based compensation included in
selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was approximately $0.4 million, compared to approximately
$2.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, representing a decrease of $2.5 million. Equity-based compensation expense is expected to
fluctuate in future quarters as equity-linked instruments are used to compensate employees, consultants and other service providers. Non-equity-
based general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2016 were approximately $4.3 million, compared to approximately
$5.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, representing a decrease of $1.5 million. The decrease was primarily related to operational and
compensation-related cost reductions compared to the prior year period.
    

For the six months ended June 30, 2016, operating costs and expenses totaled $34.3 million compared to $52.8 million for the six months ended June 30,
2015, representing a decrease of $18.4 million or 35%. Operating costs and expenses were comprised of the following:

• Cost of revenues were approximately $13.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $9.2 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2015, representing an increase of $4.1 million, or 45%. Overall, gross margin for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was $2.5 million, or
16%, compared to negative gross margin for the six months ended June 30, 2015 of $0.1 million, or 1%. Gross margin percentages generally will
increase/decrease as Clinical Service revenue increases/decreases. However, gross margin percentages will also fluctuate from period to period due
to the mix of service and reimbursable revenues and costs.

 
• Research and development expenses were approximately $9.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $14.4 million for the six

months ended June 30, 2015, representing a decrease of approximately $4.5 million, or 31%.
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◦ Immune Modulation - Immune modulation expenses, including our efforts focused on initiating our Phase 2 study of CLBS03 in T1D, were
$3.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016, representing an increase of $1.4 million compared to the six months ended June 30,
2015.

◦ Immuno-oncology - Immuno-oncology expenses, which are primarily associated with the Intus Phase 3 clinical trial for our lead
immunotherapy product candidate CLBS20, were $2.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016, representing a decrease of $2.6
million compared to the six months ended June 30, 2015. In January 2016, we discontinued the clinical development of CLBS20.
Accordingly, we expect expenses to decrease to zero as close-out activities are completed.

◦ Ischemic Repair - Ischemic repair expenses were $2.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016, representing a decrease of
approximately $2.5 million compared to the six months ended June 30, 2015. The decrease is primarily due to lower program expenses
associated with the decision to only conduct clinical study activity for a critical limb ischemia development program in Japan with a partner,
and lower expenses associated with the close-out activities of the PreSERVE-AMI Phase 2 study for CLBS10. Expenses associated with
CLBS10 are expected to decrease to zero as close-out activities are completed.

◦ Other - Other research and development expenses were $1.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016, representing a decrease of
approximately $0.8 million compared to the six months ended June 30, 2015. The decrease was primarily due to approximately $1.4 million
of lower equity-based compensation expenses and lower non-core research and development expenses, which was partially offset by $1.2
million in one-time restructuring costs for severance and loss on disposal of assets during the six months ended June 30, 2016 compared to
the prior year.

• Impairment of intangible assets for the six months ended June 30, 2015 relates to the full impairment of IPR&D associated with CLBS10 valued at
$9.4 million, based on the Company's decision that it will not pursue further development of CLBS10 upon completion of the ongoing PreSERVE-
AMI Phase 2 clinical study.

• Selling, general and administrative expenses were approximately $11.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $19.8 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2015, representing a decrease of approximately $8.7 million, or 44%. Equity-based compensation included in
selling, general and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was approximately $1.0 million, compared to approximately
$6.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, representing a decrease of $5.2 million. Equity-based compensation expense is expected to
fluctuate in future quarters as equity-linked instruments are used to compensate employees, consultants and other service providers. Non-equity-
based general and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2016 were approximately $10.2 million, compared to approximately
$13.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, representing a decrease of $3.5 million. The decrease was primarily related to operational and
compensation-related cost reductions compared to the prior year period.

Historically, to minimize our use of cash, we have used a variety of equity and equity-linked instruments to compensate employees, consultants and
other service providers. The use of these instruments has resulted in charges to the results of operations, which have been significant in the past.

Other Income (Expense)
 

Other income, net, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 was $5.4 million and $4.8 million, respectively, and primarily relates to changes
in the estimated fair value of contingent consideration liabilities. As of December 31, 2015, all estimated fair values of the contingent consideration liabilities
were $0, and there were no changes in the estimated fair values for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016.

Interest expense was $0.4 million and $1.3 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, respectively, compared with $0.5 million and
$1.1 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, respectively, and is primarily related to interest expense on the loan from Oxford Finance LLC.
 
Provision for Income Taxes

 
The provision from income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 relates to the taxable temporary differences on the goodwill

recognized in the PCT acquisition in 2011, which is being amortized over 15 years for tax purposes.
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The benefit from income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 relates primarily to the reversal of the deferred tax liability of $3.7
million associated with the impairment of the in process research and development intangible asset valued at $9.4 million, which was partially offset by the
taxable temporary differences on the goodwill recognized in the PCT acquisition in 2011, which is being amortized over 15 years for tax purposes.

A tax provision will continue to be recognized each period over the amortization period, and will only reverse when the goodwill is eliminated
through a sale, impairment, or reclassification from an indefinite-lived asset to a finite-lived asset.
 
Analysis of Liquidity and Capital Resources
 

At June 30, 2016, we had cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities of approximately $17.7 million, working capital of approximately $6.9
million, and stockholders’ equity of approximately $6.1 million.

 
During the six months ended June 30, 2016, we met our immediate cash requirements through revenue generated from our PCT operations, cash

received from the transaction with Hitachi (net of repayments on our long-term debt to Oxford Finance LLC) and existing cash balances. Additionally, we
used equity and equity-linked instruments to pay for services and compensation.

 
Net cash provided by or used in operating, investing and financing activities from continuing operations were as follows (in thousands): 

 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015

Net cash used in operating activities $ (14,575.6)  $ (21,827.0)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (1,703.3)  2,233.2
Net cash provided by financing activities 13,660.1  36,631.0
 
Operating Activities

 
Our cash used in operating activities in the six months ended June 30, 2016 totaled approximately $14.6 million, which is the sum of (i) our net loss

of $19.9 million, adjusted for non-cash expenses totaling $3.3 million (which includes adjustments for equity-based compensation, depreciation and
amortization, loss on disposal of assets and deferred tax liabilities), and (ii) changes in operating assets and liabilities providing approximately $2.0 million.

Our cash used in operating activities in the six months ended June 30, 2015 totaled approximately $21.8 million, which is the sum of (i) our net loss
of $36.4 million, adjusted for non-cash expenses totaling $10.4 million (which includes adjustments for equity-based compensation, depreciation and
amortization, impairments of intangible assets, and changes in acquisition-related contingent consideration liabilities), and (ii) changes in operating assets and
liabilities providing approximately $4.2 million.

 Investing Activities
 
• During the six months ended June 30, 2016, we spent approximately $1.7 million for property and equipment.

• During the six months ended June 30, 2015, we spent approximately $1.8 million for property and equipment, and sold (net of purchases)
approximately $4.0 million in marketable securities.

 
Financing Activities

During the six months ended June 30, 2016, our financing activities consisted of the following: 

• Hitachi Chemical purchased a 19.9% membership interest in PCT for $19.4 million.

• We raised $1.0 million in a private placement through the issuance of 141,844 shares of common stock and two-year warrants to purchase up to an
aggregate of 141,844 shares our common stock, at an exercise price of $10.00 per share.

• Upon execution of the Hitachi Transaction, we paid $6.3 million in principal payments on our long term debt to Oxford Finance LLC.
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During the six months ended June 30, 2015, our financing activities consisted of the following: 

• We raised $28.8 million (or $26.5 million in net proceeds after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses) through an
underwritten offering of 1.4 million shares of common stock at a public offering price of $20.00 per share.

• We raised gross proceeds of approximately $9.4 million through the issuance of approximately 296,977 shares of common stock under the provisions
of our equity line of credit with Aspire Capital.

Liquidity and Capital Requirements Outlook

Liquidity
    
We anticipate requiring additional capital to grow the PCT business, to fund the development of CLBS03 and other operating expenses, and to make

principal and interest payments on our loan with Oxford Finance. To meet our short and long term liquidity needs, we currently expect to use existing cash
balances, our revenue generating activities, and a variety of other means, including our common stock purchase agreements with Aspire Capital. Other
sources of liquidity could include additional potential issuances of debt or equity securities in public or private financings, partnerships and/or collaborations
and/or sale of assets. In addition, we will continue to seek as appropriate grants for scientific and clinical studies from various governmental agencies and
foundations.

In March 2016, PCT and Caladrius entered into a global collaboration that includes licensing, development and equity, with Hitachi Chemical, a
Japanese-based global conglomerate with a growing franchise in life sciences including regenerative medicine ("Hitachi Transaction"), and will receive an
aggregate of $25.0 million in cash, of which $22.5 million was received in March 2016, $1.25 million was received in June 2016, and the remainder is
expected to be received before the end of 2016. PCT will retain $10.0 million of the $25.0 million proceeds, and Caladrius received $15.0 million of the
proceeds.

In March 2016, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain investors, pursuant to which we issued and sold in a private placement
an aggregate of 141,844 shares of common stock and two-year warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 141,844 shares of our common stock, at an exercise
price of $10.00 per share. The unit purchase price for a share of our common stock and warrant to purchase one share of our common stock was $7.05 per
unit, with $1.0 million of gross proceeds received by us. On April 8, 2016, we filed a registration statement on Form S-3 to register the shares of common
stock and the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants acquired in the private placement, which registration statement became effective
on June 7, 2016.

In November 2015, we entered into a common stock purchase agreement with Aspire Capital (the "Aspire Agreement"), whereby we can sell to
Aspire Capital, subject to terms and conditions under the Aspire Agreement as well as NASDAQ rules, the lesser of (i) $30 million of Common Stock or (ii)
the dollar value of approximately 1.1 million shares of Common Stock based on the market price of the Common Stock at the time of such sale as determined
under the Purchase Agreement.

In September 2014, we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement with Oxford Finance LLC and received $15.0 million in gross proceeds. We
have been making interest-only payments on the outstanding amount of the loan on a monthly basis at a rate of 8.50% per annum. On March 11, 2016, upon
execution of the Hitachi Transaction, the Company and Oxford Finance LLC entered into an amendment to the Loan and Security Agreement whereby (i) the
Company paid $7.0 million to Oxford Finance LLC, comprised of principal, interest and early termination fees, (ii) the Company's subsidiaries PCT, PCT
Allendale, LLC, and NeoStem Family Storage, LLC (collectively the "Removed Borrowers") were removed as borrowers under the Loan, (iii) Oxford
Finance LLC's security interests in any and all assets of the Removed Borrowers were released, (iv) the interest only period on the remaining outstanding
Loan balance was extended until January 1, 2017, and (v) in the event the Company receives gross proceeds from the sale or issuance of any equity securities
or subordinated debt, or any partnership, licenses, collaboration, dividend, grant or asset sale through March 31, 2017, 20% of such proceeds will be paid to
Oxford Finance LLC, up to a $3.0 million total. If 20% of such proceeds in aggregate is less than $3.0 million by March 31, 2017, then the Company will
make a lump sum payment equal to the difference by March 31, 2017. The loan matures on September 1, 2018. As of June 30, 2016, the outstanding principal
amount under the Loan was $8.7 million.

Other sources of liquidity could include additional potential issuances of debt or equity securities in public or private financings, additional warrant
exercises, option exercises, partnerships and/or collaborations, and/or sale of assets. Our history of operating losses and liquidity challenges, may make it
difficult for us to raise capital on acceptable terms or at all. The demand
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for the equity and debt of biopharmaceutical companies like ours is dependent upon many factors, including the general state of the financial markets. During
times of extreme market volatility, capital may not be available on favorable terms, if at all. Our inability to obtain such additional capital could materially
and adversely affect our business operations.

While we continue to seek capital through a number of means, there can be no assurance that additional financing will be available on acceptable
terms, if at all, and our negotiating position in capital generating efforts may worsen as existing resources are used. Additional equity financing may be
dilutive to our stockholders; debt financing, if available, may involve significant cash payment obligations and covenants that restrict our ability to operate as
a business; our stock price may not reach levels necessary to induce option or warrant exercises; and asset sales may not be possible on terms we consider
acceptable. If we are unable to access capital necessary to meet our long-term liquidity needs, we may have to delay or discontinue the development of
CLBS03, and/or the expansion of our business or raise funds on terms that we currently consider unfavorable. The Company's inability to raise additional
capital would also raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

Seasonality
 

We do not believe that our operations are seasonal in nature.
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

 
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

There have been no material changes in our critical accounting policies and estimates during the three months ended June 30, 2016, compared to
those reported in our 2015 Form 10-K.

ITEM 3.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Not applicable.

ITEM 4.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.  

(a)  Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are our controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the
reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In
designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. Due to the inherent limitations of control systems, not all
misstatements may be detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can
occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more
people, or by management override of the control. Controls and procedures can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the above objectives
have been met.

As of June 30, 2016, we carried out an evaluation, with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act. Based on that
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective, at the
reasonable assurance level, in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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(b)  Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15, that occurred during
our last quarter to which this Quarterly Report relates that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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PART II

OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

There are no material changes to the disclosures previously reported in our 2015 Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes to the risk factors previously reported in our 2015 Form 10-K. See the risk factors set forth in our Annual
Report on our 2015 Form 10-K under the caption "Item 1 A - Risk Factors."

ITEM 2.  UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS.

None.

ITEM 3.  DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES.

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

The Exhibit Index appearing immediately after the signature page to this Form 10-Q is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

   

  CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC.

August 9, 2016

 

By:  /s/ David J. Mazzo, PhD
Name: David J. Mazzo, PhD
Title: Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

August 9, 2016

 

By: /s/ Joseph Talamo
Name: Joseph Talamo
Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 3.1

AMENDED AND RESTATED

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF

CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC.

FIRST: The name of the corporation is Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “Corporation”).

SECOND: The registered office of the Corporation is located at 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, New Castle County, Delaware,
19808. The name of its registered agent at such address is Corporation Service Company.

THIRD: The nature of the business or purposes to be conducted or promoted by the Corporation is as follows: To engage in any lawful act or activity
for which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

FOURTH:

A.     The total number of shares of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 520,000,000 shares, of which 500,000,000 shares are
designated as common stock, having a par value of $.001 per share (“Common Stock”) and 20,000,000 shares are designated as preferred stock, $.01 par
value per share (“Preferred Stock”).

B.     Preferred Stock. The designations and the powers, preferences and rights, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof of the
Preferred Stock are as follows:

The Board of Directors is authorized, subject to limitations prescribed by law and the provisions of this Article FOURTH, to provide for the
issuance of the Preferred Stock in series and by filing a Certificate pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation Law to establish the number of shares to be
included in each such series. The Preferred Stock may be issued either as a class without series, or as so determined from time to time by the Board of
Directors, either in whole or in part in one or more series, each series to be appropriately designated by a distinguishing number, letter or title prior to the
issue of any shares thereof. Whenever the term “Preferred Stock” is used in this Article FOURTH, it shall be deemed to mean and include Preferred Stock
issued as a class without series, or one or more series thereof, or both, unless the context shall otherwise require. There is hereby expressly granted to the
Board of Directors of the Corporation authority, subject to the limitations provided by law, to fix the voting power, the designations, and the relative
preferences, powers, participating, optional or other special rights, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, of the shares of each series of said
Preferred Stock and the variations in the relative powers, rights, preferences and limitations as between series, and to increase the number of shares
constituting each series, and to decrease such number of shares (but not to less than the number of outstanding shares of the series), in the resolution or
resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors providing for the issue of said Preferred stock.

The authority of the Board of Directors of the corporation with respect to each series shall include, but shall not be limited to, the authority to
determine the following:

1. The designation of the series;
2. The number of shares initially constituting such series;
3. The increase, and the decrease to a number not less than the number of the outstanding shares of such series, of the number of shares

constituting such series theretofore fixed;
4. The rate or rates and the times and conditions under which dividends on the shares of such series shall be paid, and, (i) if such dividends are

payable in preference to, or in relation to, the dividends payable on any other class or classes of stock, the terms and conditions of such
payment, and (ii) if such dividends shall be cumulative, the date or dates from and after which they shall accumulate;

5. Whether or not the shares of such series shall be redeemable, and, if such shares shall be redeemable, the terms and conditions of such
redemption, including, but not limited to, the date or dates upon or after which such shares shall be redeemable and the amount per share
which shall be payable upon such redemption, which amount may vary under conditions and at different redemption dates;

6. The amount payable on the shares of such series in the event of the dissolution of, or upon any distribution of the assets of, the Corporation;



7. Whether or not the shares of such series may be convertible into, or exchangeable for, shares of any other class or series and the price or
prices and the rates of exchange and the terms of any adjustments to be made in connection with such conversion or exchange;

8. Whether or not the shares of such series shall have voting rights in addition to the voting rights provided by law, and, if such shares shall
have such voting rights, the terms and conditions thereof, including but not limited to, the right of the holders of such shares to vote as a
separate class either alone or with the holders of shares of one or more other series of Preferred Stock and the right to have more or less than
one vote per share;

9. Whether or not a purchase fund shall be provided for the shares of such series, and, if such a purchase fund shall be provided, the terms and
conditions thereof;

10. Whether or not a sinking fund shall be provided for the redemption of the shares of such series and if such a sinking fund shall be provided,
the terms and conditions thereof; and

11. Any other powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional, or other special rights, and qualifications, limitations or restrictions
thereof, as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of this Article FOURTH or the limitations provided by law.

C.     Common Stock. The designations and the powers, preferences and rights, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof of the
Common Stock are as follows:

1. Subject to the rights of the Preferred stockholders, the holders of the Common Stock shall be entitled to receive such dividends as may be
declared thereon by the Board of Directors of the Corporation in its discretion, from time to time, out of any funds or assets of the
Corporation lawfully available for the payment of such dividends.

2. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, or any reduction of its capital, resulting in a distribution of its
assets to its stockholders, whether voluntary or involuntary, then, after there shall have been paid or set apart for the holders of the Preferred
Stock the full preferential amounts to which they are entitled, the holders of the Common Stock shall be entitled to receive as a class, pro
rata, the remaining assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders.

3. For any and all purposes of this Certificate of Incorporation, neither the merger or consolidation of the Corporation into or with any other
corporation, nor the merger or consolidation of any other corporation into or with the Corporation, nor a sale, transfer or lease of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Corporation, or any other transaction or series of transactions having the effect of a reorganization shall
be deemed to be a liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation.

4. Except as otherwise expressly provided by, law or in a resolution of the Board of Directors providing voting rights to the holders of the
Preferred Stock, the holders of the Common Stock shall possess exclusive voting power for the election of directors and for all other
purposes and each holder thereof shall be entitled to one vote for each share thereof.

D.     1. Effective as of 5:00 P.M. eastern time, on July 27, 2016 (the “Effective Time”), the shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time and the shares of Common Stock issued and held in the treasury of the Corporation immediately prior to the Effective
Time are reclassified into a smaller number of shares such that each ten (10) shares of issued Common Stock immediately prior to the Effective Time is
reclassified into one (1) share of Common Stock. Notwithstanding the immediately preceding sentence, no fractional shares shall be issued and, in lieu
thereof, any person who would otherwise be entitled to a fractional share of Common Stock as a result of the reclassification shall be entitled to be rounded
up to the next whole share of Common Stock.

2. Each stock certificate that, immediately prior to the Effective Time, represented shares of Common Stock that were issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time shall, from and after the Effective Time, automatically and without the necessity of presenting the same for exchange,
represent that the number of whole shares of Common Stock after the Effective Time into which the shares of Common Stock formerly represented by such
certificate shall have been reclassified (as well as the right to receive a whole share in lieu of a fractional share of Common Stock), provided, however, that
each person of record holding a certificate that represented shares of Common Stock that were issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time
shall receive, upon surrender of such certificate, a new certificate evidencing and representing the number of whole shares of Common Stock after the
Effective Time into which the shares of Common Stock formerly represented by such certificate shall have been reclassified (including the right to receive a
whole share in lieu of a fractional share of Common Stock).

FIFTH: Whenever a compromise or arrangement is proposed between this corporation and its creditors or any class of them and/or between this
corporation and its stockholders or any class of them, any Court of equitable jurisdiction within the State of Delaware may, on the application in a summary
way of this corporation or of any creditor or stockholder thereof or on the application of any receiver or receivers appointed for this corporation under the
provisions of Section 291 of Title 8 of the Delaware Code or on the application of trustees in dissolution or of any receiver or receivers appointed for this
corporation under the



provisions of Section 279 of Title 8 of the Delaware Code, order a meeting of the creditors or class of creditors, and/or of the stockholders or class of
stockholders of this corporation, as the case may be, to be summoned in such a manner as the Court directs. If a majority in number representing three-fourths
in value of the creditors or class of creditors, and/or of the stockholders or class of stockholders of this corporation, as the case may be, agree to any
compromise or arrangement and to any reorganization of this corporation as a consequence of such compromise or arrangement, the said compromise or
arrangement and the said reorganization shall, if made, be binding upon all of the creditors or class of creditors, and/or on all the stockholders or class of
stockholders, of this corporation, as the case may be, and also on this corporation.

SIXTH: The corporation shall have the power to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened,
pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the
corporation) by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee, or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the
corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including
attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if
he acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal
action or proceedings, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, upon a plea of nolo contendere or
equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he reasonably believed to be in or not
opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was
lawful.

SEVENTH: The Board of Directors shall have the power to make, alter or repeal the By-laws.

EIGHTH: The Corporation reserves the right to amend, alter, change or repeal any provision contained in this Certificate of Incorporation in the
manner now or hereafter prescribed by law and all rights conferred on officers, directors and stockholders herein are granted subject to this reservation.

NINTH: The personal liability of a director to the corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director is
hereby eliminated, provided that this Article shall not eliminate or limit the liability of a director (i) for any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the
corporation or its stockholders; (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; (iii) under
section 174 of Title 8 of the Delaware Code, or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. This article shall not
eliminate or limit the liability of a director for any act or omission occurring prior to the date this Article first became effective.

TENTH: The Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock, shall be designated the following relative rights, preferences and limitations as
follows:

Section 1.     Designation and Amount; Rank

There is hereby established a series of preferred stock which is designated “Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock” (referred to
herein as “Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock”). The number of shares which will constitute such series shall be Eight Hundred Twenty-Five
Thousand (825,000). The Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock shall rank pari passu with the Common Stock with respect to the payment of
dividends and to the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Section 2.     Dividends.

So long as any shares of the Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock are outstanding, no dividend shall be declared or paid or set
aside for payment or other distribution declared or made upon the Common Stock or upon any other stock ranking junior to, or on a parity with, the Series B
Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, unless, in the case of Preferred Stock, the same
dividend is declared, paid or set aside for payment on all outstanding shares of the Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock or in the case of
Common Stock, ten times such dividend per share is declared, paid or set aside for payment on each outstanding share of the Series B Preferred Stock.

Section 3.     General, Class and Series Voting Rights.

Except as otherwise provided by law, each share of the Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock shall have the same voting rights
as ten (10) shares of Common Stock and the holders of the Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock and the Common Stock shall vote together as
one class on all matters.



The foregoing voting provisions shall not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which such vote would otherwise be
required shall be effected, all outstanding shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock shall have been converted into Common Stock or shall
have been redeemed or sufficient funds shall have been deposited in trust to effect such redemption.

Section 4.     Redemption.

(A) The shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock are not redeemable prior to March 31, 2000. At any time on or after
such date through June 30, 2000, the shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock are redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of the
“Special Director” of the corporation, at the redemption price per share of $.10, if the “Trigger Conditions” have not been met.

(B) For purposes of this paragraph, the “Trigger Condition” shall mean that:

(a) the closing bid prices of the Common Stock of the corporation as reported by Nasdaq (or otherwise as set forth below) is greater than
$2.00 per share during a period of any ten (10) consecutive trading days and

(b) either:

(i) the corporation's net revenues for any fiscal quarter through the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2000 are $1 million or more (as
computed by the corporation's regular independent public accountants); or

(ii) the corporation has received net receipts of not less than $2.5 million from the sale of its Common Stock from the date hereof
through March 31, 2000.

For the purpose of any computation under the foregoing paragraph, the closing price per share of Common Stock on any date shall be the
reported last sale price, regular way, or, in case no such reported sale takes place on such day, the average of the reported closing bid and asked prices, regular
way, in either case as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape or, if the Common Stock is not listed or admitted to trading on the New
York Stock Exchange at such time, on the principal national securities exchange on which the Common Stock is listed or admitted to trading, or, if not listed
or admitted to trading on any national securities exchange, on the Nasdaq National Market or, if the Common Stock is not quoted on the Nasdaq National
Market, the average of the closing bid prices on such day in the over-the-counter market as reported by Nasdaq or, if bid prices for the Common Stock on
each such day shall not have been reported through Nasdaq, the average of the bid prices for such date as furnished by any New York Stock Exchange
member firm regularly making a market in the Common Stock selected from time to time by the Board of Directors of the corporation for such purpose or, if
no such quotations are available, the fair market value of the Common Stock as determined by a New York Stock Exchange member firm regularly making a
market in the Common Stock selected from time to time by the Board of Directors of the corporation for such purpose.

(C) For purposes of this paragraph, the “Special Director” mean James Fyfe or his successor as director of the corporation if such successor
has been approved by Fyfe. So long as any shares of the Class B Preferred Stock are outstanding, through June 30, 2000, the corporation shall nominate to the
Board of Directors Fyfe or, if Fyfe so determines, Fyfe's designee.

(D) In the event the corporation shall elect to redeem the shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock following the Trigger
Condition, the corporation shall give notice to the holders of record of shares of the Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock being so redeemed, not
less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to such redemption, by first class mail, postage prepaid, at their addresses as shown on the stock registry books of the
corporation, that said shares are being redeemed, provided that without limiting the obligation of the corporation hereunder to give the notice provided in this
Section 4(D), the failure of the corporation to give such notice shall not invalidate any corporate action by the corporation. Each such notice shall state: (i) the
redemption date; (ii) that all of the shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock are to be redeemed; (iii) that the redemption price is $.10 per
share; (iv) the place or places where certificates for such shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price; and (v) that such holder does not
have the right to convert such shares into Common Stock.

(E) Notice having been mailed as aforesaid, from and after the applicable redemption date (unless default shall be made by the corporation
in providing money for the payment of the redemption price), said shares shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding, and all rights of the holders thereof as
stockholders of the corporation (except the right to receive from the corporation the redemption price) shall cease. Upon surrender of the certificates for any
shares so redeemed (properly endorsed or assigned for transfer, if the Board of Directors of the corporation shall so require and the notice shall so state), such
shares shall be redeemed by the corporation at the redemption price aforesaid.



(F) Any shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock which shall at any time have been redeemed shall, after such
redemption, have the status of authorized but unissued shares of Preferred Stock, without designation as to series, until such shares are once more designated
as part of a particular series by the Board of Directors of the corporation.

Section 5.     Conversion.

(A) The holder of any share of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock shall have the right, at such holder's option (but not if such
share is called for redemption), exercisable on or after September 30, 2000, to convert such share into ten (10) fully paid and non-assessable shares of
Common Stock (the “Conversion Rate”). The Conversion Rate shall be subject to adjustment as set forth below.

(B) In order to exercise the conversion privilege, the holder of shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock shall surrender
the certificates representing such shares, accompanied by transfer instruments satisfactory to the corporation and sufficient to transfer the Series B
Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock being converted to the corporation free of any adverse interest, at any of the offices or agencies maintained for such
purpose by the corporation (“Conversion Agent”) and shall give written notice to the corporation at such Conversion Agent that the holder elects to convert
such shares. Such notice shall also state the names, together with addresses, in which the certificates for shares of Common Stock which shall be issuable on
such conversion shall be issued. As promptly as practicable after the surrender of such shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock as
aforesaid, the corporation shall issue and shall deliver at such Conversion Agent to such holder, or on his written order, a certificate for the number of full
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of such shares in accordance with the provisions hereof. Balance certificates will be issued for the
remaining shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock in any case in which fewer than all of the shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable
Preferred Stock represented by a certificate are converted. Each conversion shall be deemed to have been effected immediately prior to the close of business
on the date on which shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock shall have been so surrendered and such notice received by the corporation
as aforesaid, and the persons in whose names any certificates for shares of Common Stock shall be issuable upon such conversion shall be deemed to have
become the holders of record of the Common Stock represented thereby at such time, unless the stock transfer books of the corporation shall be closed on the
date on which shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock are so surrendered for conversion, in which event such conversion shall be deemed
to have been effected immediately prior to the close of business on the next succeeding day on which such stock transfer books are open, and such persons
shall be deemed to have become such holders of record of the Common Stock at the close of business on such later day. In either circumstance, such
conversion shall be at the Conversion Rate in effect on the date upon which such share shall have been surrendered and such notice received by the
corporation.

(C) In the case of any share of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock which is converted after any record date with respect to
the payment of a dividend on the Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock and on or prior to the Dividend Payment Date related to such record date,
the dividend due on such Dividend Payment Date shall be payable on such Dividend Payment Date to the holder of record of such share as of such preceding
record date notwithstanding such conversion.

(D) No fractional shares or scrip representing fractions of shares of Common Stock shall be issued upon conversion of any shares of Series
B Preferred Stock. Instead of any fractional interest in a share of Common Stock which would otherwise be deliverable upon the conversion of a share of
Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock, the corporation shall pay to the holder of such share of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock
an amount in cash (computed to the nearest cent, with one-half cent being rounded upward) equal to such fraction multiplied by the reported closing price (as
defined above) of the Common Stock at the close of business on the day on which such share or shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock
are surrendered for conversion in the manner set forth above, or if such date is not a trading date, on the next succeeding trading date. If more than one
certificate representing shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock shall be surrendered for conversion at one time by the same holder, the
number of full shares issuable upon conversion thereof shall be computed on the basis of the aggregate number of shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable
Preferred Stock represented by such certificates, or the specified portions thereof to be converted, so surrendered.

(E) The Conversion Rate shall be adjusted from time to time as follows:

(i) In case outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be subdivided into a greater number of shares of Common Stock and the
Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock is not similarly subdivided, the Conversion Rate in effect at the opening of business on the day following
the day upon which such subdivision becomes effective shall be proportionately increased, and, conversely, in case outstanding shares of Common Stock shall
each be combined into a smaller number of shares of Common Stock and the Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock is not similarly subdivided,
the Conversion Rate in effect at the opening of business on the day following the day upon which such combination becomes effective



shall be proportionately decreased, such reduction or increase, as the case may be, to become effective immediately after the opening of business on the day
following the day upon which such subdivision or combination becomes effective.

(ii) Whenever the Conversion Rate is adjusted as herein provided, (x) the corporation shall promptly file with any Conversion
Agent a certificate of a firm of independent public accountants setting forth the Conversion Rate after such adjustment and setting forth a brief statement of
the facts requiring such adjustment, and the manner of computing the same, which certificate shall be conclusive evidence of the correctness of such
adjustment, and (y) a notice stating that the Conversion Rate has been adjusted and setting forth the adjusted Conversion Rate shall forthwith be given by the
corporation to any Conversion Agent and mailed by the corporation to each holder of shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock at their last
address as the same appears on the books of the corporation.

(F) In case of any consolidation of the corporation with, or merger of the corporation into, any other entity (other than a merger or
consolidation in which the corporation is the continuing corporation) or any sale or conveyance to another corporation of the property of the corporation as an
entirety or substantially as an entirety, or in the case of a statutory exchange of securities with another corporation, or any reclassification of shares, the
Conversion Rate shall not be adjusted but each holder of a share of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock then outstanding shall have the right
thereafter to convert such share only into the kind and amount of securities, cash and other property which such holder would have owned or have been
entitled to receive immediately after such consolidation, merger, sale, conveyance, exchange or reclassification had such share of Series B Convertible
Redeemable Preferred Stock been converted immediately prior to such consolidation, merger, sale, conveyance, exchange or reclassification. Provision shall
be made in any such consolidation, merger, sale, conveyance, exchange or reclassification for adjustments in the Conversion Rate which shall be as nearly
equivalent as may be practicable to the adjustments provided for in Section (E). The above provisions shall similarly apply to successive consolidations,
mergers, sales, conveyances, exchange or reclassification.

For purposes of this Section 5, “Common Stock” includes any stock of any class of the corporation which has no preference in respect of
dividends or of amounts payable in the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the corporation and which is not
subject to redemption by the corporation. However, subject to the provisions of paragraph (F) above, shares issuable on conversion of shares of Series B
Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock shall include only shares of the class designated as Common Stock of the corporation on the date of the initial
issuance of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock by the corporation, or shares of any class or classes resulting from any reclassification or
reclassifications thereof and which have no preference in respect of dividends or of amounts payable in the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the corporation and which are not subject to redemption by the corporation.

In case:

(i) the corporation shall declare a stocks split, stock dividend (or any other distribution) on its Common Stock that would cause an
adjustment to the Conversion Rate of the Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock pursuant to the terms of subparagraph (i) of Paragraph (E) above;
or

(ii) of any reclassification of the Common Stock of the corporation (other than a subdivision or combination of its outstanding
shares of Common Stock), or of any consolidation, merger or share exchange to which the corporation is a party and for which approval of any stockholders
of the corporation is required, or of the sale or conveyance, of the property of the corporation as an entirety or substantially as an entirety; or

(iii) of the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the corporation; then the corporation shall cause to be
filed with any Conversion Agent, and shall cause to be mailed to all holders of shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock at each such
holder's last address as the same appears on the books of the corporation, at least 20 days (or 10 days in any case specified in clause (i) above) prior to the
applicable record or effective date hereinafter specified, a notice stating (x) the date on which a record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend,
distribution, rights or warrants, or, if a record is not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of Common Stock of record to be entitled to such dividend,
distribution, rights or warrants are to be determined, or (y) the date on which such reclassification, consolidation, merger, share exchange, sale, conveyance,
dissolution, liquidation or winding up is expected to become effective, and the date as of which it is expected that holders of Common Stock of record shall be
entitled to exchange their shares of Common Stock for securities, cash or other property deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation, merger, share
exchange, sale, conveyance, dissolution, liquidation or winding up. Neither the failure to give such notice nor any defect therein shall affect the legality or
validity of the proceedings described in clauses (i) through (iii) above.

The corporation will pay any and all documentary stamp or similar issue or transfer taxes payable in respect of the issue or delivery of
shares of Common Stock on conversions of shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock



pursuant hereto; provided, however, that the corporation shall not be required to pay any tax which may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the
issue or delivery of shares of Common Stock in a name other than that of the holder of the shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock to be
converted and no such issue or delivery shall be made unless and until the person requesting such issue or delivery has paid to the corporation the amount of
any such tax or has established, to the satisfaction of the corporation, that such tax has been paid.

The corporation covenants that all shares of Common Stock which may be delivered upon conversions of shares of Series B Convertible
Redeemable Preferred Stock will upon delivery be duly and validly issued and fully paid and non-assessable, free of all liens and charges and not subject to
any pre-emptive rights. The corporation further covenants that, if necessary, it shall reduce the par value of the Common Stock so that all shares of Common
Stock delivered upon conversion of shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock are fully paid and non-assessable.

The corporation covenants that it will at all times reserve and keep available, free from pre-emptive rights, out of its authorized but unissued
shares of Common Stock or its issued shares of Common; Stock held in its treasury, or both, for the purpose of effecting conversions of shares of Series B
Preferred Stock, the full number of shares of Common Stock deliverable upon the conversion of all outstanding shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable
Preferred Stock not theretofore converted. For purposes of this reservation of Common Stock, the number of shares of Common Stock which shall be
deliverable upon the conversion of all outstanding shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock shall be computed as if at the time of
computation all outstanding shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock were held by a single holder. The issuance of shares of Common
Stock upon conversion of shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock is authorized in all respects.

Section 6.     Liquidation.

In the event of any voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the corporation (for the purposes of this Section 6, a
“Liquidation”), after any distribution of assets is made to the holders of any other class or series of stock that ranks prior to the Series B Convertible
Redeemable Preferred Stock in respect of distributions upon the Liquidation of the corporation, the holder of each share of Series B Convertible Redeemable
Preferred Stock then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the corporation available for distribution to its stockholders, an amount on a
pari passu basis equal to ten times the amount per share distributed to the holders of the Common Stock.

The voluntary sale, conveyance, lease, exchange or transfer of the property of the corporation as an entirety or substantially as an entirety,
or the merger or consolidation of the corporation into or with any other corporation, or the merger of any other corporation into the corporation, or any
purchase or redemption of some or all of the shares of any class or series of stock of the corporation, shall not be deemed to be a Liquidation of the
corporation for the purposes of the Section 6 (unless in connection therewith the Liquidation of the corporation is specifically approved).

The holder of any shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to receive any payment owed for such
shares under this Section 6 until such holder shall cause to be delivered to the corporation (i) the certificate or certificates representing such shares of Series B
Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock and (ii) transfer instrument or instruments satisfactory to the corporation and sufficient to transfer such shares of
Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock to the corporation free of any adverse interest. As in the case of the redemption price, no interest shall
accrue on any payment upon Liquidation after the due date thereof.

After payment of the full amount of the liquidating distribution to which they are entitled, the holders of shares of the Series B Convertible
Redeemable Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of assets by the corporation.

Section 7.     Payments.

The corporation may provide funds for any payment of the redemption price for any shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred
Stock or any amount distributable with respect to any Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock under Section 6 hereof by depositing such funds with
a bank or trust company selected by the corporation having a net worth of at least $50,000,000 and organized under the laws of the United States or any state
thereof, in trust for the benefit of the holder of such shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock under arrangements providing irrevocably for
payment upon satisfaction of any conditions to such payment by the holder of such shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock which shall
reasonably be required by the corporation. The corporation shall be entitled to make any deposit of funds contemplated by this section 7 under arrangements
designated to permit such funds to generate interest or other income for the corporation, and the corporation shall be entitled to receive all interest and other
income earned by any funds while they shall be deposited as



contemplated by this section 7, provided that the corporation shall maintain on deposit funds sufficient to satisfy all payments which the deposit arrangement
shall have been established to satisfy if the conditions precedent to the disbursement of any funds deposited by the corporation pursuant to this Section 7 shall
not have been satisfied within two years after the establishment of the trust for such funds, then (i) such funds shall be returned to the corporation upon its
request; (ii) after such return, such funds shall be free of any trust which shall have been impressed upon them; (iii) the person entitled to the payment for
which been originally intended shall have the right to look only to the corporation for such payment, subject to applicable escheat laws; and (iv) the trustee
which shall have held such funds shall be relieved of any responsibility for such of such funds to the corporation.

Any payment which may be owed for the payment of the redemption price for any shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred
Stock pursuant to Section 4 or the payment of any amount distributable with respect to the shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock under
Section 6 shall be deemed to have been “paid or properly provided for” upon the earlier to occur of: (i) the date upon which funds sufficient to make such
payment shall be deposited in a manner contemplated by the preceding paragraph or (ii) the date upon which a check payable to the person entitled to receive
such payment shall be delivered to such person or mailed to such person at the address of such person then appearing on the books of the corporation.

Section 8.     Status of Reacquired Shares.

Shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock issued and reacquired by the corporation shall have the status of authorized and
unissued shares of Preferred Stock, undesignated as to series, subject to later issuance.

Section 9.     Preemptive Rights.

Holders of shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock are not entitled to any preemptive or subscription rights in respect of
any securities of the corporation.

Section 10.     Legal Holidays.

In any case where any Dividend Payment Date, redemption date or the last date on which a holder of Series B Convertible Redeemable
Preferred Stock has the right to convert such holder's shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock shall not be a Business Day (as defined
below), then (notwithstanding any other provision of this Certificate of Designation of the Series B Preferred Stock) payment of a dividend due or a
redemption price or conversion of the shares of Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock need not be made on such date, but may be made on the
next succeeding Business Day with the same force and effect as if made on the Dividend Payment Date or redemption date or the last day for conversion,
provided that, for purposes of computing such payment, no interest shall accrue for the period from and after such Dividend Payment Date or redemption
date, as the case may be. As used in this Section 10, “Business Day” means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday which is not a day on
which banking institutions in the City of New York or the State of New Jersey are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close.

ELEVENTH: For the management of the business and for the conduct of the affairs of the Corporation, and for further definition, limitation and
regulation of the powers of the Corporation and its Directors and stockholders:

A.     The number of Directors constituting the Corporations' Board of Directors shall be determined by the Board of Directors, from time to time.
The term of office of all Directors shall expire at the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders of the Corporation. Commencing with the 2013 annual meeting of
stockholders, the Directors constituting the Corporation's Board of Directors, other than those who may be elected by the holders of any classes or series of
stock having a preference over the Common Stock as to dividends or upon liquidation, shall be classified, with respect to the time for which they severally
hold office, into three classes, as nearly equal in number as possible, as shall be determined by the Board of Directors consistent with the terms of this Article
ELEVENTH. At the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders, one class shall be elected to a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in
2014, another class shall be elected to a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 2015, and another class shall be elected to a term
expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 2016, with each class to hold office until its successor is elected and qualified. At each annual
meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation commencing with the election in 2014, the successors of the class of Directors whose term expires at that
meeting shall be elected to hold office for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders held in the third year following the year of their election.

B.     Except as otherwise fixed by or pursuant to provisions hereof relating to the rights of the holders of any class or series of stock having a
preference over Common Stock as to dividends or upon liquidation to elect additional Directors under specified circumstances, newly created directorships
resulting from any increase in the number of Directors and any vacancies



on the Board of Directors resulting from death, resignation, disqualification, removal or other cause shall be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the
remaining Directors then in office, even though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors, or by a sole remaining Director. Any Director appointed by the
Board of Directors in accordance with the preceding sentence shall hold office and shall be elected for the remainder of the full term of the class of Directors
in which a new directorship was created or the vacancy occurred and until such Director's successor shall have been elected and qualified.
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ARTICLE I
 

MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS
 

1.1           Place of Meetings. All meetings of the stockholders shall be held at such place within or without the State of Delaware as may be
designated from time to time by the Chairman of the Board (if any), the board of directors of the Corporation (the “Board of Directors”) or the Chief
Executive Officer, or if not so designated, at the registered office of the Corporation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board of Directors may, in its sole
discretion, determine that the meeting shall not be held at any place, but may instead be held solely by means of remote communication as authorized by
Section 211(a)(2) of the General Corporation Law of Delaware. If so authorized, and subject to such guidelines and procedures as the Board of Directors may
adopt, stockholders and proxyholders not physically present at a meeting of stockholders may, by means of remote communication, participate in a meeting of
stockholders whether such meeting is to be held at a designated place or solely by means of remote communication, provided that (i) the Corporation shall
implement reasonable measures to verify that each person deemed present and permitted to vote at the meeting by means of remote communication is a
stockholder or proxyholder, (ii) the Corporation shall implement reasonable measures to provide such stockholders and proxyholders a reasonable opportunity
to participate in the meeting and to vote on matters submitted to the stockholders, including an opportunity to read or hear the proceedings of the meeting
substantially concurrently with such proceedings, and (iii) if any stockholder or proxyholder votes or takes other action at the meeting by means of remote
communication, a record of such vote or other action shall be maintained by the Corporation.
 

1.2           Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of stockholders for the election of directors and for the transaction of such other business as may
properly be brought before the meeting shall be held, at such date (which date shall not be a legal holiday in the place where the meeting is to be held) and
time and by such means of remote communication, if any, as shall be designated from time to time by the Chairman of the Board (if any), the Board of
Directors or the Chief Executive Officer and stated in the notice of the meeting.
 

1.3           Special Meetings. Special meetings of the stockholders may, unless otherwise prescribed by law or by the certificate of incorporation, be
called by the Chairman of the Board (if any), the Board of Directors or the Chief Executive Officer and shall be held at such place, on such date and at such
time as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors or the person calling the meeting, Business transacted at any special meeting shall be limited to matters
relating to the purpose or purposes stated in the notice of meeting.
 

1.4           Notice of Meetings. Except as otherwise provided by law, written notice of each meeting of stockholders, whether annual or special,
stating the place, date and hour of the meeting, the means of remote communications, if any, by which stockholders and proxyholders may be deemed to be
present in person and vote at such meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be given not
less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting, to each stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting.
 

1.5           Voting List. The officer who has charge of the stock ledger of the Corporation shall prepare and make, at least ten (10) days before every
meeting of stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, and showing the address of each
stockholder and the number of shares registered in the name of each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the examination of any stockholder, for any
purpose germane to the meeting, during ordinary business hours, for a period of at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting, either (i) on a reasonably
accessible electronic network, provided that the information required to gain access to such list is provided with the notice of the meeting, or (ii) at the
Corporation’s principal place of business. In the event that the Corporation determines to make the list available on an electronic network, the Corporation
may take reasonable steps to ensure that such information is available only to stockholders of the Corporation. If the meeting is to be held at a place, then the
list shall be produced and kept at the time and place of the meeting during the whole time thereof, and may be inspected by any stockholder who is present. If
the meeting is to be held solely by means of remote communication, then the list shall also be open to the examination of any stockholder during the whole
time of the meeting on a reasonably accessible electronic network, and the information required to access such list shall be provided with the notice of the
meeting.
 



1.6           Quorum. Except as otherwise required by law, the certificate of incorporation or these By-Laws, the holders of a majority of the shares of
capital stock of the Corporation issued and outstanding and entitled to vote thereat, present in person or by remote communication, or represented by proxy,
shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the stockholders for the transaction of business. Shares held by brokers which such brokers are prohibited from
voting (pursuant to their discretionary authority on behalf of beneficial owners of such shares who have not submitted a proxy with respect to such shares) on
some or all of the matters before the stockholders but which shares would otherwise be entitled to vote at the meeting (“Broker Non-Votes”) shall be counted,
for the purpose of determining the presence or absence of a quorum, both (a) toward the total voting power of the shares of capital stock of the Corporation
and (b) as being represented by proxy. If a quorum has been established for the purpose of conducting the meeting, a quorum shall be deemed to be present
for the purpose of all votes to be conducted at such meeting; provided that where a separate vote by a class or classes, or series thereof, is required, a majority
of the voting power of the shares of such class or classes, or series present in person or by remote communication, or represented by proxy, shall constitute a
quorum entitled to take action with respect to that vote on that matter.   If no quorum shall be present or represented at any meeting of stockholders, such
meeting may be adjourned in accordance with Section 1.7 hereof, until a quorum shall be present or represented.
 

1.7           Adjournments. Any meeting of stockholders may be adjourned from time to time to any other time and to any other place at which a
meeting of stockholders may be held under these By-Laws, which time and place shall be announced at the meeting, by a majority of the stockholders present
in person or by remote communication, or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote (whether or not a quorum is present), or, if no stockholder
is present or represented by proxy, by any officer entitled to preside at or to act as secretary of such meeting, without notice other than announcement at the
meeting. At such adjourned meeting, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the original meeting, provided that a quorum either
was present at the original meeting or is present at the adjourned meeting. If the adjournment is for more than thirty (30) days, or if after the adjournment a
new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at the
meeting,
 

1.8           Voting and Proxies. Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation, each stockholder shall at every meeting of the
stockholders be entitled to one vote for each share of capital stock having voting power held of record by such stockholder and a proportionate vote for each
fractional share so held. Each stockholder entitled to vote at a meeting of stockholders, or to express consent or dissent to corporate action in writing without
a meeting (to the extent not otherwise prohibited by the certificate of incorporation or these By-Laws), may authorize another person or persons to act for
such stockholder by proxy, but no such proxy shall be voted or acted upon after three (3) years from its date, unless the proxy provides for a longer period.
 

1.9           Action at Meetings. When a quorum is present at any meeting of stockholders, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the stock
present in person or by remote communication, or represented by proxy, entitled to vote and voting on the matter (or where a separate vote by a class or
classes, or series thereof, is required, the affirmative vote of the majority of shares of such class or classes or series present in person or represented by proxy
at the meeting) shall decide any matter (other than the election of Directors) brought before such meeting, unless the matter is one upon which by express
provision of law, the certificate of incorporation or these By-Laws, a different vote is required, in which case such express provision shall govern and control
the decision of such matter. The stock of holders who abstain from voting on any matter shall be deemed not to have been voted on such matter. Directors
shall be elected by a plurality of the votes of the shares present in person or by remote communication, or represented by proxy at the meeting, entitled to vote
and voting on the election of Directors, except as otherwise provided by the certificate of incorporation. For purposes of this paragraph, Broker Non-Votes
represented at the meeting but not permitted to vote on a particular matter shall not be counted, with respect to the vote on such matter, in the number of (a)
votes cast, (b) votes cast affirmatively, or (c) votes cast negatively.
 
     1.10    Introduction of Business at Meetings.

A.    Annual Meetings of Stockholders.
 

(1)          Nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors and the proposal of business to be considered by the stockholders
may be made at an annual meeting of stockholders (a) pursuant to the Corporation’s notice of meeting, (b) by or at the direction of the Board of Directors or
(c) by any stockholder of the Corporation who was a stockholder of record at the time of giving of notice provided for in this Section 1.10, who is entitled to
vote at the meeting and who complies with the notice procedures set forth in this Section 1.10.
 

(2)          For nominations or other business to be properly brought before an annual meeting by a stockholder pursuant to clause (c) of
paragraph (A)(1) of this Section 1.10, the stockholder must have given timely notice thereof in writing to the Secretary of the Corporation and such other
business must otherwise be a proper matter for stockholder action. To be timely,



a stockholder’s notice shall be delivered to the Secretary at the principal executive offices of the Corporation not later than the close of business on the one
hundred twentieth (120th) day nor earlier than the close of business on the one hundred fiftieth (150th) day prior to the first anniversary of the date of the
proxy statement delivered to stockholders in connection with the preceding year’s annual meeting; provided, however, that if either (i) the date of the annual
meeting is more than thirty (30) days before or more than sixty (60) days after such an anniversary date or (ii) no proxy statement was delivered to
stockholders in connection with the preceding year’s annual meeting, notice by the stockholder to be timely must be so delivered not earlier than the close of
business on the ninetieth (90th) day prior to such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of (x) the sixtieth (60th) day prior to such
annual meeting and (y) the tenth (10th) day following the day on which public announcement of the date of such meeting is first made by the Corporation.
Such stockholder’s notice shall set forth (a) as to each person whom the stockholder proposes to nominate for election or reelection as a director, all
information relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors, or is otherwise required, in each case
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) (including such person’s written consent to being
named in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected); (b) as to any other business that the stockholder proposes to bring before
the meeting, a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the meeting, the reasons for conducting such business at the meeting and any
material interest in such business of such stockholder and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the proposal is made; and (c) as to the stockholder
giving the notice and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the nomination or proposal is made (i) the name and address of such stockholder, as they
appear on the Corporation’s books, and of such beneficial owner and (ii) the class and number of shares of capital stock of the Corporation that are owned
beneficially and held of record by such stockholder and such beneficial owner.
 

(3)          Notwithstanding anything in the second sentence of paragraph (A)(2) of this Section 1.10 to the contrary, in the event that the
number of directors to be elected to the Board of Directors of the Corporation is increased and there is no public announcement by the Corporation naming all
of the nominees for director or specifying the size of the increased Board of Directors at least seventy (70) days prior to the first anniversary of the preceding
year’s annual meeting (or, if the annual meeting is held more than thirty (30) days before or sixty (60) days after such anniversary date, at least seventy (70)
days prior to such annual meeting), a stockholder’s notice required by this Section 1.10 shall also be considered timely, but only with respect to nominees for
any new positions created by such increase, if it shall be delivered to the Secretary at the principal executive office of the Corporation not later than the close
of business on the tenth (10th) day following the day on which such public announcement is first made by the Corporation.
 

B.           Special Meetings of Stockholders. Only such business shall be conducted at a special meeting of stockholders as shall have been
brought before the meeting pursuant to the Corporation’s notice of meeting. Nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors may be made at a
special meeting of stockholders at which Directors are to be elected pursuant to the Corporation’s notice of meeting (a) by or at the direction of the Board of
Directors or (b) provided that the Board of Directors has determined that Directors shall be elected at such meeting, by any stockholder of the Corporation
who is a stockholder of record at the time of giving of notice of the special meeting, who shall be entitled to vote at the meeting and who complies with the
notice procedures set forth in this Section 1.10. If the Corporation calls a special meeting of stockholders for the purpose of electing one or more directors to
the Board of Directors, any such stockholder may nominate a person or persons (as the case may be), for election to such position(s) as specified in the
Corporation’s notice of meeting, if the stockholder’s notice required by paragraph (A)(2) of this Section 1.10 shall be delivered to the Secretary at the
principal executive offices of the Corporation not earlier than the ninetieth (90th) day prior to such special meeting nor later than the later of (x) the close of
business on the sixtieth (60th) day prior to such special meeting or (y) the close of business on the tenth (10th) day following the day on which public
announcement is first made of the date of such special meeting and of the nominees proposed by the Board of Directors to be elected at such meeting.
 

C.           General.
 

(1)          Only such persons who are nominated in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 1.10 shall be eligible to serve as
directors and only such business shall be conducted at a meeting of stockholders as shall have been brought before the meeting in accordance with the
procedures set forth in this Section 1.10. Except as otherwise provided by law, the certificate of incorporation or these By-Laws, the chairman of the meeting
shall have the power and duty to determine whether a nomination or any business proposed to be brought before the meeting was made or proposed, as the
case may be, in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 1.10 and, if any proposed nomination or business is not in compliance herewith, to
declare that such defective proposal or nomination shall be disregarded.
 

(2)          For purposes of this Section 1.10, “public announcement” shall mean disclosure in a press release reported by the Dow Jones
News Service, Associated Press or comparable national news service or in a document publicly filed by the Corporation with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act.
 



(3)          Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 1.10, a stockholder shall also comply with all applicable requirements of
the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder with respect to the matters set forth herein. Nothing in this Section 1.10 shall be deemed to affect
any rights (i) of stockholders to request inclusion of proposals in the Corporation’s proxy statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act or (ii) of
the holders of any series of Preferred Stock to elect directors under specified circumstances.
 

1.11        Action without Meeting. Stockholders of the Corporation may not take any action by written consent in lieu of a meeting. Notwithstanding
any other provision of law, the certificate of incorporation or these By-Laws, and notwithstanding the fact that a lesser percentage may be specified by law,
the affirmative vote of the holders of at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the votes which all the stockholders would be entitled to cast at any annual
election of directors or class of directors shall be required to amend or repeal, or to adopt any provision inconsistent with, this Section 1,11. 
 

1.12         Inspectors. Prior to any meeting of stockholders, the Board of Directors or the President shall appoint one or more inspectors to act at such
meeting and make a written report thereof and may designate one or more persons as alternate inspectors to replace any inspector who fails to act. If no
inspector or alternate is able to act at the meeting of stockholders, the person presiding at the meeting shall appoint one or more inspectors to act at the
meeting. Each inspector, before entering upon the discharge of his or her duties, shall take and sign an oath faithfully to execute the duties of inspector with
strict impartiality and according to the best of his or her ability. The inspectors shall ascertain the number of shares outstanding and the voting power of each,
determine the shares represented at the meeting and the validity of proxies and ballots, count all votes and ballots, determine and retain for a reasonable
period a record of the disposition of any challenges made to any determination by the inspectors and certify their determination of the number of shares
represented at the meeting and their count of all votes and ballots. The inspectors may appoint or retain other persons to assist them in the performance of
their duties. The date and time of the opening and closing of the polls for each matter upon which the stockholders will vote at a meeting shall be announced
at the meeting. No ballot, proxy or vote, nor any revocation thereof or change thereto, shall be accepted by the inspectors after the closing of the polls. In
determining the validity and counting of proxies and ballots, the inspectors shall be limited to an examination of the proxies, any envelopes submitted
therewith, any information provided by a stockholder who submits a proxy by telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission from which it can be
determined that the proxy was authorized by the stockholder, ballots and the regular books and records of the Corporation, and they may also consider other
reliable information for the limited purpose of reconciling proxies and ballots submitted by or on behalf of banks, brokers, their nominees or similar persons
which represent more votes than the holder of a proxy is authorized by the record owner to cast or more votes than the stockholder holds of record. If the
inspectors consider other reliable information for such purpose, they shall, at the time they make their certification, specify the precise information considered
by them, including the person or persons from whom they obtained the information, when the information was obtained, the means by which the information
was obtained and the basis for the inspectors’ belief that such information is accurate and reliable.

ARTICLE II
DIRECTORS

 
2.1           General Powers. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of a Board of Directors, who may

exercise all of the powers of the Corporation except as otherwise provided by law or the certificate of incorporation. In the event of a vacancy in the Board of
Directors, the remaining directors, except as otherwise provided by law or the certificate of incorporation, may exercise the powers of the full Board of
Directors until the vacancy is filled.
 

2.2           Number: Election and Qualification. The number of directors which shall constitute the whole Board of Directors shall be determined by
resolution of the Board of Directors, but in no event shall be less than three. Subject to the preceding sentence, the number of Directors may be decreased at
any time and from time to time by a majority of the directors then in office, but only to eliminate vacancies existing by reason of the death, resignation,
removal or expiration of the term of one or more directors. The Directors shall be elected at the annual meeting of stockholders (or, if so determined by the
Board of Directors pursuant to Section 2.10 hereof, at a special meeting of stockholders), by such stockholders as have the right to vote on such election.
Directors need not be stockholders of the Corporation. 
 

2.3           Tenure. Each Director shall serve for a term ending on the date of the annual meeting following the annual meeting at which such Director
was elected. Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary contained herein, each Director shall hold office until his or her successor is elected and
qualified, or until his or her earlier death, resignation or removal.
 

2.4           Vacancies. Unless and until filled by the stockholders, any vacancy in the Board of Directors, however occurring, including a vacancy
resulting from an enlargement thereof, may be filled only by vote of a majority of the Directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole
remaining Director. A Director elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of his or her predecessor in office, if applicable, and a Director
chosen to fill a position resulting from an increase in the



number of Directors shall hold office until the next election of Directors and until his or her successor is elected and qualified, or until his or her earlier death,
resignation or removal.
 

2.5           Resignation. Any director may resign at any time upon notice given in writing or by electronic transmission to the Corporation at its
principal place of business or to the Chief Executive Officer or Secretary. Such resignation shall be effective upon receipt unless it is specified to be effective
at some other time or upon the happening of some other event.
 

2.6           Chairman of the Board. If the Board of Directors appoints a chairman of the board, he shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the
stockholders and the Board of Directors. He shall perform such duties and possess such powers as are customarily vested in the office of the Chairman of the
Board or as may be vested in him by the Board of Directors.
 

2.7           Place of Meetings. The Board of Directors may hold meetings, both regular and special, either within or without the State of Delaware.
 

2.8           Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice at such time and at such place as shall from time
to time be determined by the Board of Directors; provided that any Director who is absent when such a determination is made shall be given notice of such
determination. A regular meeting of the Board of Directors may be held without notice immediately after and at the same place as the annual meeting of
stockholders.
 

2.9           Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chairman of the Board (if any), the Chief Executive
Officer, two (2) or more Directors, or by one Director in the event that mere is only one Director in office. At least one (1) days’ notice to each Director,
either personally or by telegram, cable, telecopy, electronic mail, commercial delivery service, telex or similar means sent to his business or home address, or
three (3) days’ notice by written notice deposited in the mail, shall be given to each Director by the Secretary or by the officer or one of the Directors calling
the meeting. A notice or waiver of notice of a meeting of the Board of Directors need not specify the purposes of the meeting.
  

2.10         Quorum, Action at Meeting, Adjournments. At all meetings of the Board of Directors a majority of Directors then in office shall constitute
a quorum for the transaction of business. In the event one or more of the Directors shall be disqualified to vote at any meeting, then the required quorum shall
be reduced by one for each so disqualified; provided however, that in no case shall less than one third of the entire Board of Directors constitute a quorum for
the transaction of business. The act of a majority of the Directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Board of Directors,
except as may be otherwise specifically provided by law, the certificate of incorporation or these By-Laws. For purposes of this section, the term “entire
Board of Directors” shall mean the number of Directors last fixed by the stockholders or Directors, as the case may be, in accordance with law, the certificate
of incorporation and these By-Laws; provided, however, that if less than all the number so fixed of Directors were elected, the “entire Board of Directors”
shall mean the greatest number of Directors so elected to hold office at any one time pursuant to such authorization. If a quorum shall not be present at any
meeting of the Board of Directors, a majority of the Directors present thereat may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than
announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.
 

2.11         Action by Consent. Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation or these By-Laws, any action required or permitted to be
taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the Board of Directors or
committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing or electronic transmission, and the writing or writings or electronic transmission or transmissions
are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board of Directors or committee. Such filing shall be in paper form if the minutes are maintained in paper
form and shall be in electronic form if the minutes are maintained in electronic form.
 

2.12         Telephonic Meetings. Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation or these By-Laws, members of the Board of Directors
or of any committee thereof may participate in a meeting of the Board of Directors or of any committee, as the case may be, by means of conference
telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and such participation in a
meeting shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.
 

2.13         Removal. Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation, any one or more or all of the Directors may be removed without
cause by the holders of at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the shares then entitled to vote at an election of Directors. Any one or more or all of the
Directors may be removed with cause only by the holders of at least a majority of the shares then entitled to vote at an election of Directors. 
 

2.14         Committees. The Board of Directors may designate one or more committees, each committee to consist of one or more of the Directors of
the Corporation. The Board of Directors may designate one or more Directors as alternate members



of any committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee. Any such committee, to the extent provided in the
resolution of the Board of Directors and subject to the provisions of the General Corporation Law of Delaware, shall have and may exercise all the powers
and authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation, and may authorize the seal of the Corporation to be
affixed to all papers which may require it; but no such committee shall have the power or authority in reference to (a) adopting, amending or repealing the
By-Laws of the Corporation or any of them or (b) approving or adopting, or recommending to the stockholders any action or matter expressly required by law
to be submitted to stockholders for approval. Such committee or committees shall have such name or names as may be determined from time to time by
resolution adopted by the Board of Directors. Each committee shall keep regular minutes of its meetings and make such reports to the Board of Directors as
the Board of Directors may request. Except as the Board of Directors may otherwise determine, any committee may make rules for the conduct of its
business, but unless otherwise provided by the Directors or in such rules, its business shall be conducted as nearly as possible in the same manner as is
provided in these By-Laws for the conduct of its business by the Board of Directors. Adequate provisions shall be made for notice to members of all meetings
of committees. One third of the members of any committee shall constitute a quorum unless the committee shall consist of one or two members, in which
event one member shall constitute a quorum, and all matters shall be determined by a majority vote of the members present.
 

2.15         Compensation. Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation or these By-Laws, the Board of Directors shall have the
authority to fix from time to time the compensation of Directors. The Directors may be paid their expenses, if any, of attendance at each meeting of the Board
of Directors and the performance of their responsibilities as Directors and may be paid a fixed sum for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors
and/or a stated salary as a Director. No such payment shall preclude any Director from serving the Corporation or its parent or subsidiary corporations in any
other capacity and receiving compensation therefor. The Board of Directors may also allow compensation for members of special or standing committees for
service on such committees.
 

2.16         Amendments to Article. Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, the certificate of incorporation or these By-Laws, and
notwithstanding the fact that a lesser percentage may be specified by law, the affirmative vote of the holders of a least seventy-five percent (75%) of the votes
which all the stockholders would be entitled to cast at any annual election of directors or class of directors shall be required to amend or repeal, or to adopt
any provision inconsistent with, this Article II.

ARTICLE III
 

OFFICERS
 

3.1           Enumeration. The officers of the Corporation shall be chosen by the Board of Directors and shall be a Chief Executive Officer, a Secretary
and a Treasurer and such other officers with such titles, terms of office and duties as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine, including an
Executive Chairman of the Board, a President, one or more Vice-Presidents, and one or more Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers. Any number of
offices may be held by the same person, unless the certificate of incorporation or these By-Laws otherwise provide.
 

3.2           Election. The Board of Directors at its first meeting after each annual meeting of stockholders shall choose a President, a Secretary and a
Treasurer. Other officers may be appointed by the Board of Directors at such meeting, at any other meeting, or by written consent.
 

3.3           Tenure. The officers of the Corporation shall hold office until their successors are chosen and qualify, unless a different term is specified in
the vote choosing or appointing them, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal. Any officer may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by
the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the Corporation may be filled by the Board of Directors,
at its discretion. Any officer may resign by delivering his written resignation to the Chairman of the Board (if any), to the Board of Directors at a meeting
thereof, to the Corporation at its principal place of business or to the Chief Executive Officer or the Secretary. Such resignation shall be effective upon receipt
unless it is specified to be effective at some other time or upon the happening of some other event.

3.4    Executive Chairman of the Board. If the Board of Directors designates the Chairman of the Board of Directors as the Executive Chairman of
the Board of Directors, such person shall be an officer of the Corporation. The Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors: (i) shall, in general, perform all
duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors from time to time; and (ii) may sign and execute any document, deed, paper, mortgage,
bond, stock certificate, contract or other instrument or obligation in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, as authorized by the Board of Directors.
 

3.5         Chief Executive Officer. Subject only to the direction and control of the Board and the Executive Chairman, if any, the Chief Executive
Officer shall have general charge and supervision over, and responsibility for, the business and affairs



of the Corporation. Unless otherwise directed by the Board, all other Officers shall be subject to the authority and supervision of the Executive Chairman, if
any, and the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer may enter into and execute in the name of the Corporation contracts and other instruments
in the regular course of business which are authorized, either generally or specifically, by the Board. The Chief Executive Officer shall have the general
powers and duties of management usually vested in the chief executive of a business corporation and shall have such other powers and duties as may be
prescribed by the Board.
 

3.6           President. In the event the Board so designates, in the Chief Executive Officer’s absence or inability to act, the President, if any, shall
perform the duties of the Chief Executive Officer and when so performing such duties shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon
the Chief Executive Officer. Otherwise, the President, if any, shall be responsible only to the Executive Chairman, if any, to the Chief Executive Officer and
to the Board for those areas of operation of the business and affairs of the Corporation as shall be delegated to the President by the Board or by the Executive
Chairman, if any, or the Chief Executive Officer. If specified by the Board or by the Executive Chairman, if any, or the Chief Executive Officer, all other
Officers of the Corporation (except the Executive Chairman, if any, and the Chief Executive Officer) shall be subject to the authority and supervision of the
President. The President may enter into and execute in the name of the corporation contracts or other instruments in the regular course of business that are
authorized, either generally or specifically, by the Board. The Board of Directors may designate the same individual as Chief Executive Officer (or as any
other officer) and President.
 

3.7           Vice-Presidents. In the absence of the President or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, the Vice-President, or if there be
more than one Vice-President, the Vice-Presidents in the order designated by the Board of Directors or the Chief Executive Officer shall perform the duties of
the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. The Vice-Presidents shall perform such
other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.
 

3.8           Secretary. The Secretary shall have such powers and perform such duties as are incident to the office of Secretary. The Secretary shall
maintain a stock ledger and prepare lists of stockholders and their addresses as required and shall be the custodian of corporate records. The Secretary shall
attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and all meetings of the stockholders and record all the proceedings of the meetings of the Corporation and of the
Board of Directors in a book to be kept for that purpose and shall perform like duties for the standing committees when required. The Secretary shall give, or
cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the stockholders and special meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall perform such other duties as may be
from time to time prescribed by the Board of Directors or Chief Executive Officer, under whose supervision the Secretary shall be. The Secretary shall have
custody of the corporate seal of the Corporation and the Secretary, or an assistant Secretary, shall have authority to affix the same to any instrument requiring
it and when so affixed, it may be attested by his or her signature or by the signature of such assistant Secretary. The Board of Directors may give general
authority to any other officer to affix the seal of the Corporation and to attest the affixing by his or her signature.
 

3.9           Assistant Secretaries. The Assistant Secretary, or if there be more than one, the Assistant Secretaries in the order determined by the Board
of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer or the Secretary (or if there be no such determination, then in the order determined by their tenure in office), shall, in
the absence of the Secretary or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the Secretary and shall
perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer or the Secretary may from time to time
prescribe. In the absence of the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary at any meeting of stockholders or Directors, the person presiding at the meeting shall
designate a temporary or acting secretary to keep a record of the meeting.
 

3.10           Treasurer. The Treasurer shall perform such duties and shall have such powers as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors
or the Chief Executive Officer. In addition, the Treasurer shall perform such duties and have such powers as are incident to the office of Treasurer. The
Treasurer shall have the custody of the corporate funds and securities and shall keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements in books
belonging to the Corporation and shall deposit all moneys and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Corporation in such depositories as
may be designated by the Board of Directors. He shall disburse the funds of the Corporation as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, taking proper
vouchers for such disbursements, and shall render to the Chief Executive Officer and the Board of Directors, when the Chief Executive Officer or Board of
Directors so requires, an account of all his or her transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Corporation.
 

3.11         Assistant Treasurers. The Assistant Treasurer, or if there shall be more than one, the Assistant Treasurers in the order determined by the
Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer or the Treasurer (or if there be no such determination, then in the order determined by their tenure in office),
shall, in the absence of the Treasurer or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the Treasurer and
shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer or the Treasurer may from time to time
prescribe.
 



3.12         Bond. If required by the Board of Directors, any officer shall give the Corporation a bond in such sum and with such surety or sureties and
upon such terms and conditions as shall be satisfactory to the Board of Directors, including without limitation a bond for the faithful performance of the
duties of his office and for the restoration to the Corporation of all books, papers, vouchers, money and other property of whatever kind in his possession or
under his control and belonging to the Corporation.
 

3.13        Action with Respect to Securities of Other Corporations. The President, the Chief Executive Officer, the Treasurer or any officer of the
Corporation authorized by the Board of Directors shall, unless otherwise directed by the Board of Directors, have power to vote and otherwise act on behalf
of the Corporation, in person or by proxy, at any meeting of stockholders of or with respect to any action of stockholders of any other corporation in which
the Corporation may hold securities and otherwise to exercise any and all rights and powers which this Corporation may possess by reason of its ownership of
securities in such other corporation.

ARTICLE IV
 

NOTICES
 

4.1           Delivery. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein or required by law or the certificate of incorporation, all notices required to be
given to any person under these By-Laws, such notice may be given by mail, addressed to such person, at his address as it appears on the records of the
Corporation, with postage thereon prepaid, and such notice shall be deemed to be given at the time when the same shall be deposited in the United States
mail. Unless written notice by mail is required by law, notice may also be given by telegram, cable, telecopy, commercial delivery service, telex or similar
means, addressed to such person at his address as it appears on the records of the corporation, in which case such notice shall be deemed to be given when
delivered into the control of the persons charged with effecting such transmission, the transmission charge to be paid by the Corporation or the person sending
such notice and not by the addressee. Notice may also be given to stockholders by a form of electronic transmission in accordance with and subject to the
provisions of Section 232 of the General Corporation Law of Delaware. Oral notice or other in-hand delivery (in person or by telephone) shall be deemed
given at the time it is actually given.
 

4.2           Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of law or of the certificate of incorporation or of these
By-Laws, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to said notice or a waiver by electronic transmission by the person entitled to
notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent thereto. 

ARTICLE V
 

CAPITAL STOCK
 

5.1           Issuance of Stock. Unless otherwise voted by the stockholders and subject to the provisions of the certificate of incorporation, the whole or
any part of any unissued balance of the authorized capital stock of the Corporation or the whole or any part of any issued, authorized capital stock of the
Corporation held in its treasury may be issued, sold, transferred or otherwise disposed of by vote of the Board of Directors in such manner, for such
consideration and on such terms as the Board of Directors may determine.
 

5.2          Stock Certificates; Uncertified Stock. Every holder of stock in the Corporation shall be entitled to have a certificate, signed by, or in the
name of the Corporation by, the chairman or Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors, or the President or a Vice-President and the Treasurer or an assistant
Treasurer, or the Secretary or an assistant Secretary of the Corporation, certifying the number of shares owned by such holder in the Corporation, provided
that the Board of Directors of the Corporation may provide by resolution or resolutions that some or all of any or all classes or series of its stock shall be
uncertificated shares. Any such resolution shall not apply to shares represented by a certificate until such certificate is surrendered to the Corporation. Any or
all of the signatures on a certificate may be a facsimile. In case any officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been
placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be such officer, transfer agent or registrar before such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the Corporation
with the same effect as if he were such officer, transfer agent or registrar at the date of issue. Each certificate for shares of stock which are subject to any
restriction on transfer pursuant to the certificate of incorporation, these By-Laws, applicable securities laws or any agreement among any number of
shareholders or among any such holders and the Corporation shall have conspicuously noted on the face or back of such certificate either the full text of such
restriction or a statement of the existence of such restriction.
 

5.3           Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates. The Corporation may issue a new certificate or uncertificated shares in place of any certificate or
certificates theretofore issued by the Corporation alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed. When authorizing such issue of a new certificate or
uncertificated shares, the Board of Directors or the Chief Executive Officer may, in



their discretion and as a condition precedent to the issuance thereof, require the owner of such lost, stolen or destroyed certificate or certificates, or his legal
representative, to give reasonable evidence of such loss, theft or destruction, to advertise the same in such manner as it shall require and/or to give the
Corporation a bond in such sum as it may direct as indemnity against any claim that may be made against the Corporation with respect to the certificate
alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed or the issuance of such new certificate or uncertificated shares.
 

5.4           Record Date. In order that the Corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or
any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors may fix a record date, which shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is
adopted by the Board of Directors, and which shall not be more than sixty (60) days nor less then ten (10) days before the date of such meeting. A
determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided,
however, that the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting. If no record date is fixed, the record date for determining
stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on the day before the day on which notice is given,
or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on the day before the day on which the meeting is. held. In order that the Corporation may determine the
stockholders entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights or the stockholders entitled to exercise any rights in
respect of any change, conversion or exchange of stock, or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix a record date, which
shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted, and which shall be not more than sixty (60) days prior to such action. If
no record date is fixed, the record date for determining stockholders for any such purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the Board of
Directors adopts the resolution relating to such purpose.
 

5.5           Registered Stockholders. The Corporation shall be entitled to recognize the exclusive right of a person registered on its books as the owner
of shares to receive dividends, and to vote as such owner, and to hold liable for calls and assessments a person registered on its books as the owner of shares,
and shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest in such share or shares on the part of any other person, whether or not it shall
have express or other notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by the laws of Delaware.

ARTICLE VI
 

CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS
 

6.1           Transactions with Interested Parties. No contract or transaction between the Corporation and one or more of its Directors or officers, or
between the Corporation and any other corporation, partnership, association, or other organization in which one or more of its Directors or officers are
Directors or officers, or have a financial interest, shall be void or voidable solely for this reason, or solely because the Director or officer is present at or
participates in the meeting of the Board of Directors or committee thereof which authorizes the contract or transaction or solely because his, her or their votes
are counted for such purpose, if:
 
(a)          the material facts as to the relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the Board of Directors or the
committee, and the Board of Directors or committee in good faith authorizes the contract or transaction by the affirmative votes of a majority of the
disinterested Directors, even though the disinterested Directors be less than a quorum; or
 
(b)          the material facts as to the relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the stockholders entitled to vote
thereon, and the contract or transaction is specifically approved in good faith by vote of the stockholders; or
 
(c)          the contract or transaction is fair as to the Corporation as of the time it is authorized, approved or ratified, by the Board of Directors, a committee
thereof, or the stockholders.
 

6.2          Quorum. Common or interested Directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the Board of Directors
or of a committee which authorizes the contract or transaction.

ARTICLE VII
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS
 

7.1      Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be the calendar year unless otherwise fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors.



 
7.2            Seal. The Board of Directors may, by resolution, adopt a corporate seal. The corporate seal shall have inscribed thereon the name of the

Corporation, the year of its organization and the word “Delaware.” The seal may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or
reproduced or otherwise. The seal may be altered from time to time by the Board of Directors.

 
7.3          Facsimile Signatures. In addition to the provisions for use of facsimile signatures elsewhere specifically authorized by these By-Laws,

facsimile signatures of any officer or officers of the Corporation may be used whenever and as authorized by the Board of Directors or a committee thereof.
 
7.4           Time Periods. In applying any provision of these By-Laws that requires that an act be done or not be done a specified number of days prior

to an event or that an act be done during a period of a specified number of days prior to an event, unless otherwise required by law or the certificate of
incorporation, calendar days shall be use, the day of the doing of the act shall be excluded, and the day of the event shall be included.

 
7.5          Certificate of Incorporation. All references in these By-Laws to the certificate of incorporation shall be deemed to refer to the certificate of

incorporation of the Corporation, as amended and restated and in effect from time to time.
 
7.6        Severability. Any determination that any provision of these By-Laws is for any reason inapplicable, illegal or ineffective shall not affect or

invalidate any other provision of these By-Laws.
 
7.7         Pronouns. All pronouns used in these By-Laws shall be deemed to refer to the masculine, feminine or neuter, singular or plural, as the

identity of the person or persons so designated may require.

7.8    Forum for Adjudicating Disputes. Unless the Corporation consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the sole and exclusive
forum for (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the Corporation, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by
any director, officer or other employee of the Corporation to the Corporation or the Corporation’s stockholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim arising
pursuant to any provision of the Delaware General Corporation Law or the Certificate of Incorporation or these By-Laws (as either may be amended from
time to time), or (iv) any action asserting a claim governed by the internal affairs doctrine shall be the Court of Chancery in the State of Delaware (or, if the
Court of Chancery does not have jurisdiction, the federal district court for the District of Delaware). If any action the subject matter of which is within the
scope of the preceding sentence is filed in a court other than a court located within the State of Delaware (a “Foreign Action”) in the name of any stockholder,
such stockholder shall be deemed to have consented to (i) the personal jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located within the State of Delaware in
connection with any action brought in any such court to enforce the preceding sentence and (ii) having service of process made upon such stockholder in any
such action by service upon such stockholder’s counsel in the Foreign Action as agent for such stockholder. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise
acquiring any interest in shares of capital stock of the Corporation shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to the provisions of this Section 7.8

ARTICLE VIII
 

AMENDMENTS
 

8.1          By the Board of Directors. Except as is otherwise set forth in these By-Laws or the certificate of incorporation, these By-Laws may be
altered, amended or repealed, or new By-Laws may be adopted, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors present at any regular or special meeting
of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present.
 

8.2          By the Stockholders. Except as otherwise set forth in these By-Laws or the certificate of incorporation, these By-Laws may be altered,
amended or repealed or new by-laws may be adopted by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the voting power of all
the then outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote at any regular meeting of stockholders, or at any special meeting of
stockholders, voting together as a single class; provided notice of such alteration, amendment, repeal or adoption of new by-laws shall have been stated in the
notice of such special meeting.



Exhibit 10.1

AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the “Amendment”), dated and of July 25, 2016, amends the Employment Agreement
between Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. (the “Company”) and David J. Mazzo, Ph.D. (the “Executive”) dated as of January 5, 2015 and amended on January 16,
2015 (the “Agreement”). Any and all capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Agreement.

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, as of the time of entering into this Amendment the Executive served as the Chief Executive Officer at the Company;

WHEREAS, the Company and the Executive each believe it is in their respective best interests to amend the Agreement so that the terms of
Executive's employment with the Company include those terms as set forth in this Amendment; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, agree as follows:

1. Amendments.    
The following language shall be added to the Agreement in “Section 7. Compensation upon Termination of Employment” as follows”:

“(a)(vi) Change in Control Benefits. If the Company terminates Executive’s employment without Cause (other than by reason of death or Disability)
or the Executive voluntarily terminates his employment for Good Reason during the period commencing on the effective date of a Change in Control
and ending on the second anniversary of the effective date of a Change in Control, and subject to Executive complying with his obligations to
execute and deliver a Release pursuant to Section 7(d), in addition to the payments and benefits provided under Sections 7(a)(i), (ii), (iii) and (iv),
the Company will (A) extend the Severance Period during which the Additional Payments are made pursuant to Section 7(a)(ii) through the fifteen
(15) month anniversary of the Termination Date; (B) pay Executive a lump sum amount equal to 125% of Executive’s then annual target bonus on
the date the Company pays the first installment of the Additional Payments under Section 7(a)(ii) and (C) increase the COBRA Assistance payable
under Section 7(a)(iii) to equal the entire amount of the monthly premium for such coverage, without reduction for the amount that Executive would
have been required to pay if Executive had remained an active Executive of the Company, and extend the period of COBRA Assistance through the
fifteen (15) month anniversary of the Termination Date. For purposes of this Section, a Change in Control means a transaction or a series of related
transactions in which: (w) all or substantially all of the assets of the Company are transferred to any “person” or “group” (as such terms are defined
in Section 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act); (x) any person or group becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rules 13d-3 and 13d-5
under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of the Company’s outstanding equity representing more than 30% of the total voting power of the
Company’s then-outstanding equity; (y) the Company undergoes a merger, reorganization or other consolidation in which the holders of the
outstanding equity of the Company immediately prior to such merger, reorganization or consolidation own less than 50% of the surviving entity’s
voting power immediately after the transaction; or (z) the date a majority of the members of the Company’s incumbent Board of Directors is replaced
during any twelve month period by members whose appointment or election is not endorsed by a majority to the Company’s incumbent Board of
Directors before the date of the appointment or election, provided further that the Change in Control meets all of the requirements of a “change in the
ownership of a corporation” within the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.409A-3(i)(5)(v), a “change in the effective ownership of a corporation”
within the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.409A-3(i)(5)(vi), or “a change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the corporation’s assets”
within in the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.409A-3(i)(5)(vii). For purposes of (z), the incumbent Directors of the Board of Directors includes
the members of the Board of Directors as of the date of this Agreement and any additional or replacement Director appointed or elected who is
endorsed by a majority of the Company’s incumbent Board of Directors.”

2. Effect of Amendments. Except as specifically amended hereby, the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. This Amendment
shall not itself be amended, except as part of any future amendment to the Agreement effected in accordance with the terms thereof.

[Signatures follow on next page]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Amendment to be executed by its duly authorized officer and the Executive has signed this
Agreement, all as of the first date above written.

CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC.

By: /s/ David Schloss
Name: David Schloss
Title: Vice President, Human Resources

        /s/ David J. Mazzo

David J. Mazzo, PhD



Exhibit 10.2
July 25, 2016

Joseph Talamo
27 Brushy Ridge Road
New Canaan, CT 06849

Dear Joe:

This letter agreement will serve as an amendment to your promotion letter dated October 6, 2015 and amended June 30, 2016.

1. If the Company terminates your employment without Cause (other than by reason of your death or Disability) or you terminate your
employment for Good Reason during the period commencing on the effective date of a Change in Control and ending on the second anniversary of the
effective date of a Change in Control, the Company will (a) continue to pay your current base salary for a period beginning on the date the termination
becomes effective (the “Termination Date”) and ending on the twelve (12) month anniversary of the Termination Date, commencing on the next payroll
period following the Termination Date; (b) pay you a lump amount equal to 100% of your then annual target bonus on the next payroll period following the
Termination Date; and (c) provided you then participant in the Company’s medical and/or dental plans and you timely elect to continue and maintain group
health plan coverage pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended, (“COBRA”), pay monthly, on your behalf, the
amount of the monthly premium for such coverage. If and to the extent that the Company may not pay the premiums due to continue your coverage under
COBRA without incurring tax penalties or violating any requirement of law, the Company shall use its commercially reasonable best efforts to provide you
substantially similar assistance in an alternative manner, provided that the cost of doing so does not exceed the cost that the Company would have incurred
had the Company been able to pay the COBRA premiums on your behalf.

2. The following terms have the following meanings in this agreement:
a. “Cause” means that, as determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, you have: (i) committed gross negligence in

connection with your duties or otherwise with respect to the business and affairs of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its other affiliates; (ii) committed
fraud in connection with your duties or otherwise with respect to the business and affairs of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its other affiliates; (iii)
engaged in personal dishonesty, willful misconduct, willful violation of any law, or breach of fiduciary duty, in each instance, with respect to the business and
affairs of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its other affiliates; (iv) been indicted for, or has been found by a court of competent jurisdiction to have
committed or pled guilty to, (A) a felony (or state law equivalent) or (B) any other serious crime involving moral turpitude or that has (or is reasonably likely
to have) a material adverse effect either on (x) your ability to perform your duties for the Company or (y) the reputation and goodwill of the Company,
regardless of whether or not such other crime is related or unrelated to the business of the Company, its subsidiaries or other affiliates; (v) shown chronic use
of alcohol, drugs or other similar substances that materially affects your work performance; (vi) breached your obligations under any written agreement
between you and the Company related to confidentiality, non-competition, non-solicitation or the assignment of intellectual property; (vii) failed to materially
perform your duties or to follow the lawful directives of the Board of Directors; provided, that, if such failure described in this clause (vii) is susceptible to
cure (as determined in the reasonable discretion of the Board of Directors), you shall have thirty (30) days after notice from the Board of Directors to cure
such failure; or (viii) materially violated the Company's written code of conduct or other written or established policies and/or procedures in place from time
to time; provided, that, if such violation described in this clause (viii) ) is susceptible to cure (as determined in the reasonable discretion of the Board of
Directors), you shall have thirty (30) days after notice from the Board of Directors to cure such violation. Any notice to you under this Section 2(a) shall be in
writing and shall specify in reasonable detail your acts or omissions that the Company alleges constitute “Cause.”

b. “Change in Control” means a transaction or a series of related transactions in which: (i) all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company are transferred to any “person” or “group” (as such terms are defined in Section 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act); (ii) any person or
group becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rules 13d-3 and 13d-5 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of the Company’s outstanding
equity representing more than 30% of the total voting power of the Company’s then-outstanding equity; (iii) the Company undergoes a merger, reorganization
or other consolidation in which the holders of the outstanding equity of the Company immediately prior to such merger, reorganization or consolidation own
less than 50% of the surviving entity’s voting power immediately after the transaction; or (iv) the date a majority of the members of the Company’s incumbent
Board of Directors is replaced during any twelve month period by members whose appointment or election is not endorsed by a majority to the Company’s
incumbent Board of Directors before the date of the appointment or election, provided further that the Change in Control meets all of the requirements of a
“change in the ownership of a corporation” within the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.409A-3(i)(5)(v), a “change in the effective ownership of a
corporation” within the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.409A-3(i)(5)(vi), or “a



change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the corporation’s assets” within in the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.409A-3(i)(5)(vii). For purposes
of (z), the incumbent Directors of the Board of Directors includes the members of the Board of Directors as of the date of this Agreement and any additional
or replacement Director appointed or elected who is endorsed by a majority of the Company’s incumbent Board of Directors.”

c. “Disability” means that you have been unable to perform your duties to the Company on account of physical or mental illness or
incapacity for a period of ninety (90) consecutive calendar days or one hundred twenty (120) calendar days (whether or not consecutive) during any 365-day
period, as a result of a condition that is treated as a total or permanent disability under the long-term disability insurance policy of the Company that covers
you.

d. “Good Reason” means (i) a material reduction in your base salary; (ii) your position, duties, responsibilities, or authority have
been materially reduced or you have been repeatedly assigned duties that are materially inconsistent with your duties, in each case, without your consent; or
(iii) the requirement that you relocate your primary place of employment more than 50 miles from your current place of employment (unless such location is
closer to your primary residence). “Good Reason” shall not be deemed to exist, however, unless (x) you shall have given written notice to the Company
specifying in reasonable detail the Company's acts or omissions that you allege constitute “Good Reason” within sixty (60) days after the first occurrence of
such circumstances and the Company shall have failed to cure any such act or omission within sixty (60) days of receipt of such written notice, and (y) you
actually terminate your employment within one hundred eighty (180) days following the initial occurrence of the condition you consider to be “Good
Reason.” If you fail to provide this notice and cure period prior to your resignation, or resign more than one hundred eighty (180) days after the initial
existence of the condition, your resignation will not be deemed to be for “Good Reason.”

3. Section 409A. Any termination of your employment triggering the payments and benefits set forth under Section 1 must constitute a
“separation from service” under Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”) and Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(h) before
distribution of the payments and benefits can commence. All payments and benefits due under this letter agreement will be paid from the Company’s general
assets and no separate fund has been or will be established to secure payment. All amounts otherwise payable to you remain available to and subject to the
claims of the Company’s creditors until actually paid to you. This letter agreement and the terms of this severance arrangement are intended to be exempt
from the coverage of Section 409A as an involuntary separation pay plan. If any provision of this letter agreement is ambiguous, but a reasonable
interpretation of the provision would result in the payments or benefits payable to you being exempt from Section 409A, the Company intends that
interpretation to govern those payments and benefits.

4. Miscellaneous. No provision of this letter agreement may be modified, waived or discharged unless such waiver, modification or
discharge shall be agreed to in writing and signed by you and an authorized officer of the Company. No waiver by either you or the Company at any time of
any breach by the other party of, or compliance with, any condition or provision of this letter agreement to be performed by that party will be deemed a
waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditions at the same or at any prior or subsequent time. No agreements or representations, oral or otherwise,
express or implied, with respect to the subject matter hereof have been made by either party which is not expressly set forth in this letter agreement. This
letter supersedes all prior written or oral promises concerning the payment of severance following the termination of your employment. All descriptive
headings in this letter agreement are inserted for convenience only and are disregarded in construing or applying any provision of this letter agreement. The
laws of the State of New York shall govern the validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this letter agreement, without reference to New York’s
conflict of law rules.

Except as modified by this letter agreement, all other terms of your employment remain the same. If you are in agreement with the terms of this letter
agreement, please countersign the letter below and return it to me.

Caladrius Biosciences, Inc.
    

By: /s/ David J. Mazzo, PhD
Name: David J. Mazzo, PhD
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Accepted and agreed
as of the date of this letter agreement:

/s/ Joseph Talamo
Joseph Talamo            



Exhibit 10.3

AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the “Amendment”), dated and of July 25, 2016, amends the Employment Agreement
between Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. (the “Company”) and Robert Preti, Ph.D. (the “Executive”) dated as of December 22, 2015(the “Agreement”). Any and
all capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Agreement.

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, as of the time of entering into this Amendment the Executive served as the Senior Vice President, Manufacturing and Technical
Operations as well as President, PCT LLC, a Caladrius Company at the Company;

WHEREAS, the Company and the Executive each believe it is in their respective best interests to amend the Agreement so that the terms of
Executive's employment with the Company include those terms as set forth in this Amendment; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, agree as follows:

1. Amendments.    

The following language shall be added to the Agreement in “Section 7. Compensation upon Termination of Employment” as follows”:

“(a)(v) Change in Control Benefits. If the Company terminates Executive’s employment without Cause (other than by reason of death or Disability)
or the Executive voluntarily terminates his employment for Good Reason during the period commencing on the effective date of a Change in Control
and ending on the second anniversary of the effective date of a Change in Control, and subject to Executive complying with his obligations to
execute and deliver a Release pursuant to Section 7(d), in addition to the payments and benefits provided under Sections 7(a)(i), (ii), (iii) and (iv),
the Company will (A) pay Executive a lump sum amount equal to 100% of Executive’s then annual target bonus on the date the Company pays the
first installment of the Additional Payments under Section 7(a)(ii) and (B) increase the COBRA Assistance payable under Section 7(a)(iii) to equal
the entire amount of the monthly premium for such coverage, without reduction for the amount that Executive would have been required to pay if
Executive had remained an active Executive of the Company. For purposes of this Section, a Change in Control means a transaction or a series of
related transactions in which: (w) all or substantially all of the assets of the Company are transferred to any “person” or “group” (as such terms are
defined in Section 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act); (x) any person or group becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rules 13d-3
and 13d-5 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of the Company’s outstanding equity representing more than 30% of the total voting
power of the Company’s then-outstanding equity; (y) the Company undergoes a merger, reorganization or other consolidation in which the holders of
the outstanding equity of the Company immediately prior to such merger, reorganization or consolidation own less than 50% of the surviving entity’s
voting power immediately after the transaction; or (z) the date a majority of the members of the Company’s incumbent Board of Directors is replaced
during any twelve month period by members whose appointment or election is not endorsed by a majority to the Company’s incumbent Board of
Directors before the date of the appointment or election, provided further that the Change in Control meets all of the requirements of a “change in the
ownership of a corporation” within the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.409A-3(i)(5)(v), a “change in the effective ownership of a corporation”
within the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.409A-3(i)(5)(vi), or “a change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the corporation’s assets”
within in the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.409A-3(i)(5)(vii). For purposes of (z), the incumbent Directors of the Board of Directors includes
the members of the Board of Directors as of the date of this Agreement and any additional or replacement Director appointed or elected who is
endorsed by a majority of the Company’s incumbent Board of Directors.”

2. Effect of Amendments. Except as specifically amended hereby, the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. This Amendment
shall not itself be amended, except as part of any future amendment to the Agreement effected in accordance with the terms thereof.

[Signatures follow on next page]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Amendment to be executed by its duly authorized officer and the Executive has
signed this Agreement, all as of the first date above written.

CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC.

By: /s/ David J. Mazzo
Name: David J.Mazzo, PhD
Title: Chief Executive Officer

        /s/ Robert Preti

Robert Preti, PhD



Exhibit 10.4

AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the “Amendment”), dated as of July 25, 2016, amends the Employment Agreement
between Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. (the “Company”) and Douglas W. Losordo (the “Employee”) dated as of July 23, 2013, (the “Agreement”). Any and all
capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Agreement.

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, as of the time of entering into this Amendment the Employee served as the Chief Medical Officer at the Company;

WHEREAS, the Company and the Employee each believe it is in their respective best interests to amend the Agreement so that the terms of
Employee’s employment with the Company include those terms as set forth in this Amendment; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, agree as follows:

1.    Amendments.    

The following language shall be added to the Agreement in “Section 7. Compensation upon Termination of Employment” as follows”:

“(a)(v) Change in Control Benefits. If the Company terminates Employee’s employment without Cause (other than by reason of death or Disability)
or the Employee voluntarily terminates his employment for Good Reason during the period commencing on the effective date of a Change in Control
and ending on the second anniversary of the effective date of a Change in Control, and subject to Employee complying with his obligations to
execute and deliver a Release pursuant to Section 7(d), in addition to the payments and benefits provided under Sections 7(a)(i), (ii), (iii) and (iv),
the Company will (A) be required to pay Employee the Additional Payments through the end of the Extended Severance Period pursuant to Section
7(a)(ii), (B) pay Employee a lump sum amount equal to 100% of Employee’s then annual target bonus on the date the Company pays the first
installment of the Additional Payments under Section 7(a)(ii) and (C) increase the COBRA Assistance payable under Section 7(a)(iii) to equal the
entire amount of the monthly premium for such coverage, without reduction for the amount that Employee would have been required to pay if
Employee had remained an active employee of the Company. For purposes of this Section, a Change in Control means a transaction or a series of
related transactions in which: (w) all or substantially all of the assets of the Company are transferred to any “person” or “group” (as such terms are
defined in Section 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act); (x) any person or group becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rules 13d-3
and 13d-5 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of the Company’s outstanding equity representing more than 30% of the total voting
power of the Company’s then-outstanding equity; (y) the Company undergoes a merger, reorganization or other consolidation in which the holders of
the outstanding equity of the Company immediately prior to such merger, reorganization or consolidation own less than 50% of the surviving entity’s
voting power immediately after the transaction; or (z) the date a majority of the members of the Company’s incumbent Board of Directors is replaced
during any twelve month period by members whose appointment or election is not endorsed by a majority to the Company’s incumbent Board of
Directors before the date of the appointment or election, provided further that the Change in Control meets all of the requirements of a “change in the
ownership of a corporation” within the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.409A-3(i)(5)(v), a “change in the effective ownership of a corporation”
within the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.409A-3(i)(5)(vi), or “a change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the corporation’s assets”
within in the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.409A-3(i)(5)(vii). For purposes of (z), the incumbent Directors of the Board of Directors includes
the members of the Board of Directors as of the date of this Agreement and any additional or replacement Director appointed or elected who is
endorsed by a majority of the Company’s incumbent Board of Directors.”

2.    Effect of Amendments. Except as specifically amended hereby, the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. This Amendment shall not
itself be amended, except as part of any future amendment to the Agreement effected in accordance with the terms thereof.

[Signatures follow on next page]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Amendment to be executed by its duly authorized officer and the Executive has
signed this Agreement, all as of the first date above written.

CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC.

By: /s/ David J. Mazzo
Name: David J.Mazzo, PhD
Title: Chief Executive Officer

        /s/ Douglas W. Losordo

Douglas W. Losordo, MD



Exhibit 31.1
 

CERTIFICATION
 
I, David J. Mazzo,PhD, certify that:
 
1.  I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc.;
 
2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4.  The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:
 

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by  this report based on such evaluation; and

 
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 9, 2016

/s/ David J. Mazzo, PhD
Name: David J. Mazzo, PhD
Title: Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2
 

CERTIFICATION
 
I, Joseph Talamo, certify that:
 
1.  I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc.;
 
2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4.  The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:
 

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by  this report based on such evaluation; and
 
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

 
Date: August 9, 2016

 
/s/ Joseph Talamo
Name: Joseph Talamo
Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



Exhibit 32.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. (the “Company”) for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, David J. Mazzo, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my knowledge that:
 

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Company as of the dates presented and
the results of operations of the Company for the periods presented.

 
Dated:  August 9, 2016
 

 /s/ David J. Mazzo, PhD
 David J. Mazzo, PhD
 Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)
 
The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350,
Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code) and is not being filed as part of the Form 10-Q or as a separate disclosure document.
 



Exhibit 32.2
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. (the “Company”) for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Joseph Talamo, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my knowledge that:
 

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Company as of the dates presented and
the results of operations of the Company for the periods presented.

 
Dated:  August 9, 2016

 

 /s/ Joseph Talamo
 Joseph Talamo

 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer)

 
The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350,
Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code) and is not being filed as part of the Form 10-Q or as a separate disclosure document.
 


